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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board") of directors (the “Directors”), | herein present
the annual report of NNK Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group is principally engaged in providing mobile top-up services to mobile users
through electronic banking systems of PRC banks and other channels including third-party

online platforms, its own websites and WeChat public account.

In the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 has affected various businesses. The
PRC government enacted draconian quarantine measures, strict travel restrictions and the
extension of Lunar New Year Holiday in response to the COVID-19 epidemic. Market
participants within the mobile top-up industry were affected to different extent, especially
the temporary suspension of operation of physical stores due to the COVID-19 safety
concerns that declined the transaction volume from offline channels. The Group was able
to maintain its operation during the COVID-19 epidemic and given its reputation in the
mobile top-up industry, the Group was able to source much favourable top-up credits
from its suppliers. When the COVID-19 epidemic has begun to be under control in the
PRC and the physical stores gradually resumed operation in the second half of 2020, the
PRC telecommunication operators and their distributors had adjusted their strategies,
and the discount rates offered by them have declined since the second half of 2020.
[t resulted in the decrease in average discount rate that the Group received from the
PRC telecommunication operators, their distributors and other channels to 0.7% for the
second half of 2020 from 1% for the first half of 2020, although average discount rate
increased from 0.7% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 0.8% for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
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The Group has strived to increase its gross transaction value for the second half of 2020
in order to compensate the impact on the reduction of the average discount rate. In
recent years, major PRC banks were putting more investment and promotion effort in
their internet banking and mobile banking APP services, in order to increase customers'
activity in internet banking and mobile banking APP services, and strengthen connection
with customers. The Group has taken these opportunities to extend the corporation
with those PRC banks by supplying top-up credits and coupons for their promotion
activities. With the recovery of the PRC economic activities amid the pandemic gradually
brought under control in the PRC in the second half of 2020, major PRC banks have
increased their purchases of top-up credits and coupons from the Group for their
promotion activities. The gross transaction value from such sales for the second half of
2020 has reached RMB712 million, as compared with RMB270 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and RMB310 million for the second half of 2019. The sales of top-
up coupons for the banks" promotion activities have stimulated the growth of the gross
transaction value via electronic banking system. The gross transaction value via electronic
banking system for the second half of 2020 was RMB5,747.3 million, a 52.4% increase
from RMB3,771.3 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and an 89.2% increase
from RMB3,037.4 million for the second half of 2019. Overall gross transaction value with
mobile users increased by approximately 42.3% to approximately RMBI0,112.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB7,107.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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The Group monitored the extent of direct cost with the increasing volume of top-up
service provided during the year. The commission fee rates charged by certain PRC banks
have been reduced due to the Group's reputation and long-term cooperation with these
PRC banks. The Group has streamlined downstream channels, terminated cooperation
with several third-party channel partners that charged higher commission rates and
reduced the scale of offline channels. The commission fees charged by PRC banks and
other channels for handling mobile top-up service requests via their electronic systems
decreased to RMBI5.4 million for the year ended 3| December 2020 from RMBI7.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, with an increase in gross transaction value
by approximately 42.3%. Moreover, the Group from time to time sourced stable and price
competitive top-up resources from its suppliers during the year. Such measures could

enable the Group to maintain its competitiveness within the mobile top-up industry.

As a result of the overall increase in gross transaction value of the mobile users and
the average discount rate received from the PRC telecommunication operators, their
distributors and other channels, the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB30.2 million, as compared with
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2019 of
approximately RMBO.7 million.
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Chairman’s Statement
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2021, opportunities and challenges will co-exist in the Group's
mobile top-up service business in the PRC. Cooperation with major PRC banks for their
promotion activities has secured the Group's position as a major supplier of mobile
top-up service through electronic banking system of PRC banks, and will stimulate the
growth of the Group's gross transaction value through this channel. On the other hand,
the fluctuations of average discount rates which were affected by policies and business
strategies from the PRC telecommunication operators and their distributors will continue
to affect the profit margin of the Group. The Group will leverage its extensive experiences
and competitive advantages in the mobile top-up service industry to enhance cooperation
with PRC banks and the operators, and expand the Group's service offerings in existing
channels. The Group will increase its effort to source more favourable top-up credits
from its suppliers. Moreover, the Group will continue to optimize the Group’s operational

procedure to reduce the operating cost and improve the efficiency of its workflow.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our staff and management team for their dedication and contribution in the
past year, as well as to our shareholders and business partners for their confidence and

support to the Group.

Huang Junmou

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
The following table sets forth the Group's income statement for the year ended 3|

December 2020 as compared to the year ended 31 December 2019:

BEEENWR DN
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Year ended 3| December

BEt-A=t-HLFE

2020 2019 Change

et #
RMB’000 RMB'000 %
ARBTR  ARETL %
Revenue A 81,742 49,827 64.1%
Cost of revenue W AR A (18,228) (20,129) 9.4%
Gross Profit ER 63,001 29,645 112.5%
Other income and expenses H AR R 7,520 6,796 10.7%
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRHERX (6,338) (6,795) -6.7%
Administrative expenses TR (25,665) (20772) 23.6%
Research and development expenses MEFRS (7,075) (6649) 6.4%
Finance costs IR I (1,224) (1,552) 211%
Profit before tax BREE AT 8RR 30219 673 43902%
Income tax expense PSR (6) (8) -25.0%
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 282 BB A FEAL & A% F 30,213 665 44433%

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMB81.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 64.1% as compared with
approximately RMB49.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase
in revenue was primarily due to the increase in mobile top-up requests via electronic
banking systems and the increase in average discount rate received from the PRC

telecommunication operators and their distributors during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gross Transaction Value with Mobile Users

The gross transaction value with mobile users increased by approximately 42.3% to
approximately RMBI10,112.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB7,107.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The gross
transaction value via electronic banking systems increased by approximately 63.4%
to approximately RMB9,518.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB5,825.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The gross
transaction value through offline channels and other channels including third-party
online platforms, the Group's own websites and WeChat public account decreased by
approximately 53.7% to approximately RMB593.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 from approximately RMBI,282.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The increase in the gross transaction values via electronic banking systems was mainly
caused by the deepening cooperation with major PRC banks. The decrease in the gross
transaction values through offline channels and other channels was resulted from the
suspension of operation of physical stores due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and the

streamline of the downstream channels during the year ended 3| December 2020.

Gross Transaction Value with PRC Telecommunication Operators, their Distributors
and other Channels

The average discount rate that the Company received from the PRC telecommunication
operators, their distributors and other channels increased from approximately 0.7% for the
year ended 3| December 2019 to approximately 0.8% for the year ended 31 December
2020. The gross transaction value with the PRC telecommunication operators, their
distributors and other channels increased by approximately 42.1% for the year ended 3|
December 2020 as compared to the year ended 3| December 2019, which was in line

with the increase in the gross transaction value with mobile users.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue decreased by approximately 9.4% to approximately RMB18.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB20.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, primarily due to the decrease in commission fees charged
by PRC banks and other channels for handling mobile top-up service requests via their
electronic banking systems, as a result of the reduction of the rates for commission fees
charged by certain PRC banks and decrease in gross transaction value from certain third-

party channel partners charging higher commission rates.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the increase in the gross transaction value and discount rate and decrease
in cost of revenue, gross profit increased by approximately |12.5% to approximately
RMB63.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB29.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group's overall gross profit margin increased to approximately 77.1% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from approximately 59.5% for the year ended 3| December
2019, mainly due to the increase in the average discount rate that the Company received
from the PRC telecommunication operators and their distributors and decrease in cost of

revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJE FI—J-FIHH& *ﬁ'

Other Income and Expenses

Other income and expenses increased by approximately 10.7% to approximately RMB7.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB6.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Such increase was primarily due to two (for the year
ended 31 December 2019: one) government subsidies of approximately RMB2.8 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: RMBI.0 million) were granted to the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 in relation to research and development expenses
incurred in prior years and one-off support from Shenzhen bureau to enterprises in the
digital economy sector, and the recognition of net exchange loss from bank balances
denominated in Hong Kong dollars of approximately RMBO.7 million (for the year ended
31 December 2019: net exchange gain RMBO0.4 million) as a result of the appreciation of

Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased by approximately 6.7% to approximately
RMB6.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB6.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily due to the decrease in sales

promotion expenses.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 23.6% to approximately RMB25.7
million for the year ended 3| December 2020 from approximately RMB20.8 million for
the year ended 3| December 2019, primarily due to the increase in professional and

consultants' fees for business development and staff cost.

Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses increased by approximately 6.4% to approximately
RMB7.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB6.6

million for the year ended 3| December 2019, primarily due to the increase in staff cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately 21.1% to approximately RMBI.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMBI.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2019, primarily due to the decrease in average bank borrowings and the

decrease in average borrowing rate.

Income Tax Expense
The Group's income tax expense was minimal compared with profit before tax of
RMB30.2 million as the assessable profit was significantly absorbed by tax loss by relevant

subsidiary of the Company.

Profit for the year attributable to Owners of the Company

As a result of cumulative effects of foregoing, profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB30.2 million,
as compared with profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 3|

December 2019 of approximately RMBO.7 million.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
The Group's working capital was funded by cash from operating activities, bank loans and
proceeds from the global offering of the Company. Certain financial data are summarized

as follows:
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As at 31 December
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2020 2019
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RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents RekHReEED 103,579 117,329
Net current assets mEEEFE 213,983 183,601
Net cash (used in) from operating activities ReEE (R RS FHE (40,658) 20497
Net cash from (used in) financing activities MEZBME (A R %8 27,636 (22461)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents of the Group was approximately
RMBI103.6 million, as compared with approximately RMBI 17.3 million as at 31 December
2019. The Group reported net current assets of approximately RMB214.0 million as at 31
December 2020, as compared with approximately RMB183.6 million as at 31 December
2019. The Group's current ratio was approximately 2.60 as at 3| December 2020, as
compared with approximately 3.01 as at 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash used in operating activities was
approximately RMB40.7 million, as compared with net cash from operating activities of
approximately RMB20.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. For the year
ended 3| December 2020, net cash from financing activities was approximately RMB27.6
million, as compared with net cash used in financing activities of approximately RMB22.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease in net cash from operating
activities was due to the increase in transactions with longer credit terms granted to major

PRC banks for their promotion activities.

The bank borrowings of the Group increased by approximately 150.0% to approximately
RMB50.0 million as at 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB20.0 million as at 31
December 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the total bank borrowings, being interest-
bearing bank borrowings which were dominated in Renminbi, carried fixed interest rate at
520% (31 December 2019: floating interest rate at 5.90%) per annum and were repayable

within one year.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables mainly represent receivables from PRC banks in relation to our mobile
top-up service. Trade receivables increased from approximately RMB105.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB[89.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, primarily reflecting the increase in transactions with longer credit period
(about 30 to 45 days from invoice date) due to deepening cooperation with major PRC

banks for their promotion activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade receivables turnover days (calculated by the average of the beginning and ending
balances of trade receivables of the year, divided by the gross transactions value with
mobile users for the year and multiplied by 366 days) for the year ended 31 December
2020 was 5 days (for the year ended 31 December 2019: 6 days). The Company realised
that the increase in transactions with longer credit period would require a much closer
monitoring of the settlement in order to ensure business turnover. The Company will
continue to monitor the credit risk by ongoing review the settlement of customers, and
evaluate the credit limits annually accordingly to the track record and financial position of

the counterparties.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio (calculated by dividing bank borrowings by
total equity as at the end of the year) of the Group increased to approximately 0.24 from
approximately 0.1 I as at 31 December 2019, primarily attributable to the increase in bank

borrowings of the Group.

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had capital expenditure of
approximately RMB0.8 million, as compared with approximately RMBO.| million for the
year ended 3| December 2019. The above expenditure was mainly related to leasehold

improvement and the purchase of computers and office equipment.

Significant Investment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant investment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material capital commitments.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's reporting currency is in Renminbi to which the Group’s material transactions
are denominated. The net proceed from global offering are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, which exposed the Group to market risk arising from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rate. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure closely

and consider the usage of hedging instruments when the need arises.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Charges on Assets

As at 3| December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any asset charges.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities, guarantees or any litigation.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS
There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December
2020.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material acquisition or disposal

of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures by the Group.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 77 (31 December 2019: 72) full-time
employees. Total staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration) was approximately
RMBI8.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared with approximately
RMBI7.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. All employees have joined the
state-managed retirement benefits schemes or Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in
Hong Kong, which are classified as defined contribution plans. There were no forfeited
contributions used to reduce the existing level of contributions for both 2019 and 2020.
The Group believes that employees are one of its most important assets and the Group
strives to offer a competitive remuneration to its employees. The Group has been
recruiting and promoting individuals based on merit and their development potentials.
Remuneration package offered to all employees including Directors is determined with
reference to their performance, qualifications, experience and the prevailing salary levels
in the market. The Group has been providing training opportunities for its employees in

order to enhance their qualifications and equip them with necessary skills.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Junmou (E#£38), aged 54, is our chairman and has been an executive
Director of the Company since 18 June 2014. He is a founder of the Group and has
served as a director and chairman of the board of Shenzhen NINK since its incorporation.
He is responsible for overseeing the Group's overall strategic planning and management.
Mr. Huang has over |5 years of experience in information technology related industries,
including over |3 years of experience in the mobile top-up service industry. Prior to
founding Shenzhen NNK;, he was the general manager of Shenzhen Motivity Telecom
Co, ltd. (RINTIRE) S EFABR AT, a company primarily engaging in the provision
of information technology outsourcing services from June 2004 to May 2006, where he
was responsible for business development. Mr. Huang was a shareholder and a director
of Shenzhen Honglingyu Industrial Limited Company from May 2001 to May 2004,
where he was responsible for strategic planning and management of the company. Prior
to that, Mr. Huang was a shareholder and worked as a supervisor for Shenzhen Difulan
Industrial Limited Company from May 1998 to May 2001, where he was responsible for
administrative and financial management. Mr. Huang was an employee of the Shenzhen
Post Office (ZIITTENE /) from September 1988 to August 1992, and an employee of
Shenzhen Telecommunications Development Company (FIITTEZEEAF]) from
November 1992 to November 1995. Prior to that, Mr. Huang worked for Shenzhen
Fengsheng International Textile and Fashion Company (7YI[2 6% BB R4 AREE B BR A
&]) from October 1986 to October 1988.

Mr. Yang Hua (#%£), aged 49, has been an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company since 18 June 2014. Mr. Yang is responsible for the Group's
overall management, operations and business development. He is a founder of the Group
and has served as a director and general manager of Shenzhen NNK since December
2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yang was the general manager of Shenzhen Long
Feng Hua Industrial Co,, Ltd. (RYIIZ EEE X B N7]), a company engaged in the
provision of software engineering services from June 2000 to May 2006. He served as the
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Shuaihua Electronics Co., Ltd. (RIITTRIZEE

BFRA7A]), a company engaged in the provision of software engineering and information
technology services, where he was responsible for business development and research

and development from August 1998 to May 2000.

Mr. Yang received a bachelor’s degree in semiconductor devices and physics from Xian
Jiaotong University (FEZZZBAZ) in July 1994,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Xiangcheng (ZZ ), aged 52, has been a non-executive Director of the
Company since 18 June 2014. He is responsible for providing oversight over the Group's
administrative matters and business strategies. He has also been a deputy general
manager of Shenzhen NNK from June 2006 to January 2011 and a director since then.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Shuaihua
Electronics Co., Ltd. (RYITENEEF AR 2 F]), a company primarily engaged in the
provision of software engineering and information technology services, from October
1998 to May 2006, where he was responsible for the company's day-to-day operations

and research and development.

Mr. Li received his bachelor's degree in applied mathematics and computer application
from the University of Electronic Science and Technology of China (2 FEHZAKE) in
July 1991,

Mr. Xu Xinhua (FFE7E), aged 73, has been a non-executive Director of the Company
since 18 June 2014. He is responsible for supervising the Group's administrative matters
and business strategies. Mr. Xu joined our Group in June 2009 and has served as the
supervisor of Shenzhen NNK since January 201 I. Prior to joining our Group, he was a
senior engineer of the Shenzhen Telecommunications Bureau (FIJITE(EH) from
January 2001 to March 2008 where he was responsible for administrative and human
resources management and a senior engineer at the Guangdong Provincial Posts and
Telecommunications Company (R E{S7AH]) from September 1999 to January
2001, where he was responsible for corporate planning and development and asset
management. From May 1975 to September 1999, Mr. Xu worked at the Shantou District
Posts and Telecommunications Company (JILIS8E {72 7)), starting as a technician and
gradually being promoted to an engineer, and was responsible for corporate development,

project management and operations management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yu Zida (% F), aged 56, has been a non-executive Director of the Company since
18 June 2014. He is responsible for overseeing the strategic development of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yu has served as the president of Shenzhen Sinomaster
Investment Group Co,, Ltd. (RIITT1¢ /1 EIRE KB B R 2 F]) since September 2013,
He has served as director of T&S Communications Co., Ltd. (FYI KR K BIERHER
72 7A]) since March 2014, a company Listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code:
300570). Since 20 March 2015, he has been served as a director of Shenzhen Aisidi Co.,
Ltd. (RINTE @D B PR A R]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 002416). From April 2016 to March 2019, he has been served as a director
of Shanghai Kuwu Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (/8BS EEEEE RN ER
72 7]), a company listed on New OTC Market.

Mr. Yu was a deputy director of the end user committee of the China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (I BIS I8 E IR R A £ B 2 HiL
FAFZEE) from November 2007 to August 2013. He was recognized as a National
Young and Middle-aged Expert with Outstanding Contributions (FFEI# & F A%
BREIER) by the State Council of the PRC in 1999 for his contribution to engineering
services. Mr. Yu was awarded certificates for High-Level Professional in Shenzhen in
November 2013 and April 2019 for each of terms of five years, where he was recognized
as a national-level talent by the Human Resources and Social Security Administration
of Shenzhen Municipality (FYITT A 1 EJRFIH 2IRIZD). He served as an assistant
vice president and Head of the Headquarter Research and Development Promotion
Department (T HEEANER) of the Haier Group (BF5E) started from February
2002. From October 2003, he served as a vice president and the head of the information
technology products department, from April 2005 he served as a vice president and head
of the company’s strategy department, from December 2009, he served as senior vice
president and chief technology officer, and from April 2010 to September 2013 he served
as executive vice president and Chief Technology Officer of the Haier Group. He also
served as a director of Qingdao Haier Co. Ltd. (B & /8BMHER 2 A]), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600690), from June 2010 to April
2013.

Mr. Yu received a bachelor's degree in power engineering from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology (EEFRHXAZ) (formerly known as Huazhong College of
Engineering (24 TE%)) in July 1985. He further obtained a master's degree in power
engineering from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (ZEFR I K
(formerly known as Huazhong Polytechnic University (227 3 T K£2)) in July 1988.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Zhangxi (M&%), aged 69, was appointed to our Board as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 November 2014. He has over 25 years of experience in
the information systems industry. He has held multiple research and teaching positions,
including Deputy Director of FinTech Research Institute of Harbin Institute of Technology,
Shenzhen since February 2019, tenured professorship and the co-director of the Center
for Advanced Analytics and Business Intelligence of Texas Tech University from 2007
to May 2018, and Emeritus Professor of Texas Tech University since February 2019,
the dean of Yunshang Silk Road Big Data Industry Research Institute, Korla Economic &
Technological Development Zone (EER$IA BRI ERE LA4MA 2 B ABBESE
5Ehe) from August 2016 to January 2018 representing Xihua University (FIZEAE2)
at Sichuan, the director of the Sichuan Province Finance Intelligence and Engineering Key
laboratory (/I & REZHEMTIEERERE) from May 2008 to December
2015, the director of Fujian Engineering School Next Generation Intemet Research Center
(RERIRZR T —REBARMERARERMERL) from 2004 to 2010, adjunct
professor of the Fujian Engineering School since June 2004, a professor of Tongji University
(R ARER) since October 1995. He headed the provincial pilot of international payment
balance information management system, a program of the 7th Five-Year Programs for
Science and Technology Development of China of the National Development and Reform
Committee during 1988 to 1992. He was a deputy supervisor at the Fujian Province
Economic Information Centre (f832%& & &S S 4 from November 1987 to July
1992 and a senior engineer at the Fujian Provincial Planning Committee Computer Centre
(BEEEIZESE T EH D) from November 1983 to October 1987.

Mr. Lin received a master of engineering degree from Tsinghua University (&% K22 in
June 1982, He further received a master of science degree in economics in December
1996 and a doctor of philosophy degree in December 1999 from the University of Texas
at Austin. He is a member of several key industry organizations, including the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineer, the Institute for Operations Research and the

Management Sciences and Association for Information Systems.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Qian Haomin (882 ), aged 44, was appointed to our Board as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 November 2014. He has extensive experience in brand
strategy and operations and participated in the establishment of CSJ-SBI Financial Media
Co, Ltd, a joint venture between China Securities Journal and SBI Group in January 201 I.
He currently serves as a director, general manager of CSJ-SBI Financial Media Co., Ltd. He
joined China Securities Journal (FF BI&Z&##R) in June 2001 and had held various positions
including reporter, director of the career development department and assistant to the
chief editor and assistant to the journal president. Prior to joining China Securities Journal,
he worked as an assistant researcher at the International Information Research Agency of
the National Information Centre (BIZ 12 8 H U BIBE SHHFEFT) from August 1998
to June 2001. He was a member of the drafting committee of the “Interpretation of
Securities Law" of The National People’s Congress Securities Law Amendment Drafting
Group (RBIARBHEEHRENA(EFEZER)HEEH4) and the drafting
committee of the 2005 and 2006 editions of “China Trust Company Operation Report”
by China Renmin University Trust Fund Research Institute (FBIARKBETEE S
HFERT2005 R 2006 FE(FEERARIKEERE)HREE). In addition, Mr. Qian is
the chairman of China Securities Jinniu (Beijing) Investment Consulting Co., Ltd. (¥ &%
F L R)REZAERAE]), a company he joined in March 2012. Mr. Qian is qualified
as a fund practitioner of the Asset Management Association of China (FfBIFE 1% & &
SEHE), and he was recruited in July 2017 as the researcher at the Institute of Finance
and Accounting in Wuhan University (E\)% A S8 7% S & 5T R A,

Mr. Qian received a bachelor's degree in economics from Peking University (b L KE8) in

July 1998
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBEBREFE

Ms. Zhao Jinlin (B ), aged 52, was appointed to our Board as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 November 2014. She is a professor in the School of Economics
of Shenzhen University, which she joined in June 2006. Ms. Zhao is a committee member
of China International Taxation Research Institute. She was an independent non-executive
director of Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (53 B S15A% (T B A
FR 2 R]), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0312).
until April 2019, an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Infinova Technology
Co,, Ltd. (RYIEFRAEERD B AR, a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002528), until February 2019, and an independent non-executive
director of Shenzhen Esun Display Co., Ltd (RIITT 5 =ERAR A, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002751), until March 2019.

Ms. Zhao received a bachelor's degree in welding from the Xian Jiaotong University (78%
ZIARE) in July 1989, a master's degree in accounting from Southwestern University of
Finance and Fconomics (PR EA4E A2 in June 1995 and a doctor of philosophy degree

in accounting from Jinan University (28 KX Z2) in January 2005,
Save as disclosed above,

() the Directors did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies of
which the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas
in the last three years prior to the date of this report and does not hold any other

positions with the Company or other members of the Group; and

(2)  the Directors do not have other relationship with any other Directors, senior

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Wai Tung (E1#3R), aged 40, is the Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong joined the Company in June 2017. He has over |8
years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial management in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Mr. Wong is responsible for the financial management and company secretarial

matters of the Group.

Mr. Wong graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor degree
in accounting in November 2002. Mr. Wong is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of

Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

[t is the belief of the Board that good corporate governance plays a vital part in
maintaining the success of the Company. The Company is committed to achieve and
maintain high standards of corporate governance practices to ensure greater corporate
performance accountability and transparency, and safeguard the interests of shareholders

of the Company (the “Shareholders").

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules"). The Board will continue to review and enhance its
corporate govermance practice of the Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code

and align with the latest developments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
to all Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2020.

THE BOARD

Corporate strategy

The strategy of the Group is to deliver sustainable returns with solid financial fundamentals,
so as to enhance total long-term return for Shareholders. Please refer to the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report for discussions and analyses of the performance of the Group, how the Group
generates and preserves value over the longer term and how the Group will execute its

strategy for delivering the business objectives of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including two executive Directors, three

non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board for the year ended 3| December 2020 and up to the date

of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Junmou (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Hua (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. LI Xiangcheng

Mr. XU Xinhua

Mr. YU Zida

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhangxi

Mr. QIAN Haomin

Ms. ZHAQ Jinlin

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among the board members
and the senior management are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages |7 to 23 of this annual report. Details
regarding the term of appointment of the non-executive Directors are set out in the
section headed "Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment” on pages 7|

to 72 in this annual report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provisions A2.| of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of a listed company should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. In accordance with Code Provision A2.| of the CG Code, the
roles of the chairman (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer (the “CEQ”) are
separately performed by Mr. Huang Junmou and Mr. Yang Hua, and the division of their
responsibilities is clearly established and set out in writing in order to ensure a clear

distinction between the responsibilities of the Chairman and CEO.
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Mr. Huang Junmou is the Chairman of the Board and primarily responsible for providing
leadership to the Board and overseeing the Group's overall strategic planning and
management. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practices. With
the support of the company secretaries of the Company, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely manner. The Chairman encourages all Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors to actively participate in all board and committee meetings. Mr. Huang
is a founder of the Group and has over |5 years of experience in information technology
related industries, including over |3 years of experience in the mobile top-up service

industry.

Mr. Yang Hua is the CEO of the Company and responsible for Group's day-to-day
management, operations and business development. The CEO focuses on implementing
objectives, polices and strategies approved by the Board. Mr. Yang is a founder of the
Group and has over |5 years of experiences in interet industry, including over |3 years

of experiences in the mobile top-up service industry.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines as set out under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. The Board has
delegated to the CEO, and through him, to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the
Board has established board committees (the “Board Committees”) and has delegated
to these Board Committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference. Further details of these committees are set out in section headed “Board

Committees” in this annual report.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and

management of the Company are delegated to the management.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and

professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have access to all the information of the Company as well as the services
and advice of the company secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders

at all times.
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The CG Code requires directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved to the issuer. Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the

Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors' liabilities in

respect of legal actions against its Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 7 January 2016 which set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional qualification,
skills, knowledge and industry and length of service. The Company aims to maintain
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the
Company's business growth. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits

of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be made

upon the merits and the contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) will review
the board diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend

any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises of eight Directors, covering
different genders and has a broad age distribution and a diverse mix of background,
knowledge and skills. The Nomination Committee considers that, appropriate balance has

been stricken among the Board members in terms of skills, experience and perspectives.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally made available
to Directors in advance. The Board meets at least four times per year at approximately
quarterly intervals in accordance with Code Provision A.l.1 of the CG Code. Notice
of not less than |4 days would be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend pursuant to Code Provision A.1.3 of the CG

Code and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other board and committee meetings, reasonable notice would be given. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors
at least three days before each board meeting or committee meeting to keep Directors
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. All
Directors can access to the senior management and the joint company secretaries of the
Company at all time and upon reasonable request seek independent professional advice

at the Company's expense.

Minutes of the meetings are kept properly with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and record. Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which meeting is held. The minutes of the

board meetings are available for inspection by Directors.

The articles of association of the Company (“Articles”) contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have a matenial

interest.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS
The attendance record of each Director at the Board, Board Committees meetings and
general meetings of the Company held during the year ended 3| December 2020 is set

out in the table below:

EERZESHEHETH
REZE_Z_ZF+_A=+—-HLEFEXR
NRAISEFHREEEE  EEZBEEER
BRASWZRHHRTE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

- V/é
Annual

Board Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit General
Name of Director Meeting Comnmittee Committee Committee Meeting
£33 EZeeE REZEE FMzZEe  ENZEE RREFAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr, HUANG Junmou BRELE 44 I/l Il NATER Il
Mr. YANG Hua BELE 44 NANER  NANER  NATMER I
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. LI Xiangcheng FERREE 44 NAMER  NATEER  NATER I/
Mr. XU Xinhua SHTELE 44 NAMER  NATER  NATER I
Mr. YU Zida WTELE 44 NAMER  NATER  NATER I
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. QIAN Haomin BRREE 4/4 I NIATEH n I/l
Mr. LIN Zhangxi WERLE 44 NATER I n I
Ms. ZHAQ Jinlin BEHL T 44 I/l I/l ) I/l

Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not hold any other general

meeting during the year ended 3| December 2020.

Code provision A2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with the non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) without the executive directors present. For the year ended 3|
December 2020, the Chairman met with the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors without other executive Directors present to understand their

concerns and to discuss pertinent issues.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as Directors of the Company and of the conduct,

business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visits to the Company's offices and meetings with senior

management of the Company.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of CG Code, Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics
will be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company's expenses. According to the records of the
Company, in 2020, all Directors attended training sessions on duties and obligations
of directors of companies listed on the Stock Exchange which was conducted by the

Company's legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws.
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PDeaipa

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the key methods of attaining continuous

professional development by each of the Directors are summarised as follows:

3_7¢+ A=+—RHIFE "
ii;%%?*)?&E’JIKHﬂEEUZDT

Attending Reading
courses/ regulatory
Name of Directors seminars materials
HERRE BEEE
BEx=pns mae REER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. HUANG Junmou HERRE \ \
Mr. YANG Hua BERE V V
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. LI Xiangcheng FEMELE V \
Mr. XU Xinhua FTETES A \ \
Mr. YU Zida WFERAE \ \
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. QIAN Haomin BRR5kE \ !
Mr. LIN Zhangxi WERHLE \ \
Ms. ZHAO Jinlin HMEMZL \ \
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A4.l of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive Directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A4.2 of
the CG Code states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
and is appointed for a specific term of three years unless terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract/signed an appointment letter with the Company and is

appointed for a specific term of three years.

All appointments of Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles. In accordance with the Articles, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that

meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
laid down in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of

Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are posted on the Stock

Exchange’s website and Company's website.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control system of the Group,
oversee the audit process and select external auditors and assess their independence and

qualifications.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Zhao Jinlin, Mr. Lin Zhangxi and Mr. Qian Haomin. Ms. Zhao Jinlin is the chairlady of the
Audit Committee and she is the Company’s independent non-executive Director with the

appropriate professional qualifications.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020 to
review the annual financial results and report in respect of the year ended 31 December
2019 and interim financial results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2020 as
well as significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems, and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal

audit function.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to
the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are, among other things, to establish, review and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; and to establish transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her

associates will participate in deciding his’/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
being Ms. Zhao Jinlin and Mr. Lin Zhangxi and one executive Director, being Mr. Huang

Junmou. Mr. Lin Zhangxi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 30 March 2020 to review the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy

and remuneration structure of the Company.

The primary goal of the Group's remuneration policy for executive Directors is to enable
the Company to retain, provide incentive and reflect their individual performance by
a reasonable remuneration package. The remuneration package includes basic salary,
performance and/or discretional bonus, participation in the share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) and other benefits. Remuneration of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors mainly includes the director’s fee which is a matter
for the Board to decide by reference to the duties and responsibilities of the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors and their participation in

the Scheme.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and the role and responsibilities
delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are, among other things, to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of Directors and evaluate the structure and composition
of the Board. In the nomination procedures, the Nomination Committee makes reference
to criteria including reputation of candidate for integrity, accomplishment, experience,

professional and educational backgrounds.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, being
Ms. Zhao Jinlin and Mr. Qian Haomin and one executive Director, being Mr. Huang

Junmou. Mr. Huang Junmou is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 30 March 2020 to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors to determine their eligibility and discussed the re-appointment of

directors and succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted a nomination policy in March 2019. This policy aims to set out the
approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the selection, appointment
and re-appointment of Directors, and to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of

the Company's business.
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The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend candidate(s) for
directorships to the Board by giving due consideration to criteria including but not limited

to (collectively, the “Criteria”):

(a)  Diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational

background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b)  Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available time and

relevant interest;

() Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries

the Company's business is involved in;

(d)  Compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent non-executive Director;

(e)  Reputation for integrity;

(f)  Potential contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board; and

(g)  Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend retiring Director(s) to the
Board for re-appointment by giving due consideration to the criteria including but not

limited to:

(@)  The overall contribution and service of the retiring Director(s) to the Company,
including but not limited to the attendance of the meetings of the Board and/or
its committees and general meetings where applicable, in addition to the level of

participation and performance on the Board and/or its committees; and

(b)  whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the Criteria.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties including:

. to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

. to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and

Directors; and

. to review the Company's compliance with CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report in the annual report of the Company.

The Board has performed the above corporate governance duties during the year ended

31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a

timely manner.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report on pages 102 to 108 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group, including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal control system
of the Group and review their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. A defined
management structure with specified limits of authority and responsibilities is developed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for

publications, and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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The Company's risks are identified from operations in its established enterprise-wide
risk assessment methodologies. The Company periodically reviews each position of the
operating departments and other functional departments to identify, analyse and evaluate
the risks. The risk assessment results and the proposed internal control measures are
submitted to the Directors and senior management of the Company for review and
approval. The Directors and senior management of the Company are also responsible for
supervising the effectiveness of implementation and future execution of the risk control

measurement.

The Company has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk management and
internal control systems. The results of the internal audit and review are reported to
the executive Directors and the Audit Committee. The Group has engaged Zhonghui
Anda Risk Services Limited (“Zhonghui Anda”) to conduct a review on the effectiveness
of the major cycles of the Group's internal control system for the year ended 31
December 2020. Such review covered material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and it did not reveal any significant defects. Zhonghui Anda
has reported major findings and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's internal audit function and is satisfied with its
adequacy and effectiveness for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Audit Committee
also reported the risk management assessment conducted by Zhonghui Anda to the

Board in the Board meeting held on 30 March 2021.

Relevant recommendations made by Zhonghui Anda have been properly followed up by

the Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures and practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems, and considered
the risk management and internal control systems are effective and adequate in all material

aspects in both design and operations.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 3| December 2020 amounted to
approximately RMB1.9 million and RMB0.4 million respectively. Non-audit services
performed by the external auditors included review of the Group's interim results, agreed
upon procedures in connection with the Group’s connected transactions and preliminary

announcement of 2020 final results.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wong Wai Tung and Ms. Wong Wai Ling are the joint company secretaries of the
Company. Ms. Wong Wai Ling is a vice president of a corporate services provider, SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, and assists Mr. Wong Wai Tung in
company secretarial affairs. The primary corporate contact person of Ms. Wong Wai Ling

at the Company is Mr. Wong Wai Tung.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Wong Wai Tung and Ms. Wong Wai Ling
have undertaken not less than |15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating policies
on remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out

in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

The senior management’s (including all executive Directors) remuneration for the year

ended 31 December 2020 is within the following bands:
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company and the Board believe that effective communication with Shareholders
and other investment community is essential for enhancing investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies, improving the level of corporate governance
transparency and strategic credibility. The Company’s objectives on investor relations
are to maintain strong contacts with investors, to provide them with accurate and timely
information and to listen to Shareholders suggestions and concerns, and answer raised

questions sincerely.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings. The chairman
of the Board, non-executive Director, independent non-executive Directors, and the
chairmen and the chairlady of all Board Committees (or their delegates) will make

themselves available at general meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The 2021 annual general meeting ("*AGM") of the Company will be held on Wednesday,
23 June 2021.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
www.nnk.com.hk, where up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s business
operations and development, financial information, corporate governance practices and

other information are available for public access.

The Company and the Board value the views and the inputs of Shareholders and
investors. The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and Shareholders in
relation to the development of the Company to the Company's investor relations team

via email or telephone.

42 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

HERRRREENBERREERE

ARAREZSHE  ERRLEMEEE
BIELANARAEHER  MBEREEY
AEEXBRANKENTHE  RELEE
BERERRBAEE - ARAIMREEH
BETHEERARREERFZINHE - B
RERPERIBEOER - RERRZR
REDFEEY BB AL R ERHAORE

ARARRNRFEBRIFEL E - LEZE
iﬂﬂxﬁﬂﬁﬁ“&ﬁ‘ﬂﬂﬂxﬁﬁ 2 M RE
ESETR  FATES  BUFRT
%%&Pﬁﬁi%é%ﬁzﬁﬁ (AEEERE)
REEBRAS  ERREERBELH -

ARBRZE-—FREBFAT (|RREAE
BR-_E-—FE AZ+=H(EH

ARREBREBR ADARILB@U
www.nnkcomhk » EEAR R EBER K EE
MBMBERRER MBER  CEERE
BREMERARARER -

ARAREZCERRRARKREENRRER
ER - ARABARBEERBERABBETH
HREFRADAERAADAREERE
BF R EE -



Corporate Governance Report

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy, which aims to set out the
principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration,
payment or distribution of its profits, as dividends to the Shareholders. According to the
dividend policy, the Board shall take into account the following factors of the Group when

considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

. operation requirements;

. eamings;

. financial condition;

. capital requirements; and

. any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at
Shareholder's meeting on each substantial issue at general meetings, including the election

of individual Directors.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles, general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more Shareholders deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at 40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or, in the event that the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one Shareholder which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong,
or in the event that the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expensed incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the

Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to article 16.4 of the Articles, no person shall, unless recommended by the
Board, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless
during the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there has been given to the
company secretary notice in writing by a member of the Company (not being the person
to be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given,
of his intention to propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed by

the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or Cayman Islands Companies Law for
Shareholders to move new resolutions at general meeting. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph headed "Procedures for

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company's
Hong Kong share registrar, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board could send their enquiries to the Company's headquarters and principal place
of business in the PRC at 5/F, Building F5, TCL International E City, No. 1001 Zhongshan
Yuan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

An amended and restated memorandum of association and Articles of the Company was
adopted on 14 December 2015 and took effect from 7 January 2016 (the “Listing Date”).
The Company has not made any changes to its constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 December 2020. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the

Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal control measures, the
Company understands its duties under the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), and adheres to the important principle of timely publication of
the inside information. The Company abides by the “Guide on disclosure of inside
information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission, and has developed
a complete system of internal procedures and internal control measures for processing
and publication of information in order to ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate

disclosure of relevant information to the public and regulatory authorities.

The Company has established an inside information handling team which consists
executive Directors, chief financial officer and company secretary and investor relations
to identify, evaluate and report to the Board about any potential inside information. The
Company is required to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably practicable
in accordance with SFO and Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company also included in its information disclosure polices a
strict prohibition on the unauthorized use of confidential or inside information. The Board
will determine further escalation and appropriate handling the dissemination of inside

information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is pleased to present this environmental, social and governance report (‘ESG
Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2020, pursuant to the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Reporting Guide provided in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
(the “ESG Guide"), which sets out the Group's policies and practices in four aspects,
namely environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community involvement. The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Guide and complies with the principle of “comply or explain” provision in the Listing
Rules. The ESG Report is designed to allow Shareholders, investors (including potential
investors) and the public to have a more comprehensive and profound understanding of

the corporate governance and culture of the Company.

The Group is committed to put emphasis on environmental protection and sustainable
development. The Group strives to utilize resources efficiently and effectively in workplace
and reduce impacts on the environment; raise its social responsibility and improve well-
being of its employees; and demonstrate the Group's commitment to the corporate
social responsibility. Apart from pursuing corporate profits, the Group also took into
consideration the sustainable development of the environment, the society and corporate
governance in all aspects of the business operation of the Group, so that those standards

could be sustained.

The Board is responsible for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has
established an ESG working team to engage the management and employees across all
functions in order to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their materiality to the
Group's business as well as the Company’s stakeholder, through reviewing the Group's
operations and internal discussions. Disclosures relating to the material ESG issues
identified have been included in this ESG Report pursuant to the ESG Guide. This ESG
Report focuses on mobile top-up services business, the principal business of the Group. It

covers the operations of the Group’s PRC Operating Entity, Shenzhen NNK.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HEBRERES

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group maintains communication with various stakeholders which refer to groups

and individuals that materially influencing or affected by the Group's business. Through

various channels, the Group can timely access the latest request of the stakeholders

and proactively respond to their requests in order to foster the Group's capability in

fulfilling its environmental and social responsibilities and achieving the Group's sustainable

development objectives.
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Stakeholders B E Communications and Responses BEREE

. Customers . P Customers satisfaction survey EFmEERE
Customers feedback EPRE
Commercial communication [SESGELH
Service complaint and response RisHRF R EE

«  Shareholders/investors  +  FRER HEE Shareholders' meeting BRRAE
Annual report/Interim report FR/HH®
Announcement and notice NERBE

. Suppliers . HrEm
+  Employees - [EB
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Group websites and WeChat
public account

Direct communication

Site visit and evaluation
Contract execution
Cooperation negotiation
Suppliers evaluation system
Product quality

Corporate reputation

Induction training
Regular staff training and activity
Communication meeting

Employee feedback mechanism
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R HERERES

Stakeholders MErEEE Communications and Responses BREEE
Government and - BKREEZF  Direct communication ERAER
Regulatory Authorities Relevant conference Vil
Field visit BiiRE
Compliance management BRER
Policy compliance BEREHR
Media - KR Announcement and notice NERBEE
Interview R
Group websites and WeChat SRR RIMERTR
public account
Community S o Volunteer activity ERREES
Donation to community ran R i
The business of the Group affects different stakeholders, and these stakeholders have AEEXBEFETRAMNREBE  MAH

various expectations of the Group. To enhance the materiality analysis, the Group will
continue to expand the scope of stakeholders' engagement and collect a diverse range of

stakeholders' views through various activities in the future.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group understands that its daily operations could have impacts on the
environment, therefore the Group looks for ways to achieve environmental
sustainability while continuing its business growth. The Group encourages
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations and promotes
awareness towards environmental protection to its employees. To put into
practice, the Group has implemented a series of environmental-friendly measures
in the workplace to minimize its environmental impacts. The Group seizes every
opportunity to engage its staff in supporting green initiatives in daily operations to
call for collective effort in sustaining the environment. To this end, the Group has
introduced several initiatives to improve energy efficiency, minimize greenhouse
gas (“GHG") emissions and enhance indoor air quality. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group has complied with all relevant environmental laws and

regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Al

Emissions

As a specialized online mobile top-up service provider in the PRC, the Group's
operations do not involve in production-related air, water and land pollution that
are regulated by applicable laws and regulations in the PRC. For the year ended 3|
December 2020, the Group did not produce hazardous waste or harmful pollutants
in the course of its business. The Group has always been actively seeking various
environmental protection measures to reduce the indirect impact of business

development on the environment.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “A3 The Environmental and Natural
Resources” in this ESG report, the Group considered only limited non-hazardous
waste was produced in the course of business, therefore relevant data for the year

was not available.

The carbon emissions resulting from the daily operations of the Group mainly

come from the greenhouse GHG emissions generated from electricity use.

The Group also realized that transportation by any means can result in GHG
emissions. As the Group has extensive and numerous channel partners in different
regions in the PRC, travelling on business trip is also one of the major contributions
to GHG emissions. As at 31 December 2020, due to unavoidable commercial
activities, the total emissions of GHG of the Group was 10,702.3Kg, representing
an decrease of 18,442.0Kg of GHG emissions as compared with 29,144.3Kg as of
31 December 2019. The total emissions intensity of GHG was 152.9Kg/employee,
as compared with 404.8Kg/employee as of 31 December 2019. Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in business trips due to outbreak of COVID-19.
The Group aims at monitoring GHG emissions by not more than 25,000kg for the
year ending 31 December 2021. To achieve this target, the Group will continue to
encourage its employees to conduct meeting with channel partners and suppliers
by video conferencing and teleconferencing and thus minimize GHG emissions. In
addition, the Group also encourages staff to take public transportation in order to
reduce GHG emissions. The Group has also adopted measures such as maintaining
Company’s vehicles and tires status on regular basis, and switching off idle engines
during long time waiting to reduce energy consumption in order to reduce GHG

emissions.
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Use of Resources A BRER

With the vision of protecting the planet and incorporating environmental RBEREMIR AR FEAFEERA

sustainability into its business function and processes, the Group proactively seeks EBBE LR - AEEEGRSKER

opportunities to enhance operating efficiency in workplace to reduce the use LSRR A S EMENHEE DUR D

of resources. The Group closely monitors the utilization of resources and takes BRER - ARE TR ERE RN

remedial actions whenever necessary. PR 7E 0 B SRER A A 6 o

Staff are well informed of Group's green measures through different communication ARBESEEEERNBEREHRG R

channels, such as intranet and regular meetings. The Group continuously cultivates ETRBRAREZNHNEET - A&E

its staff awareness and encourages their behavioral change. REBEEINERRED FHEIX

As disclosed above, several measures have been implemented to improve energy WEXARE - AEBSELIESE

saving in the Group's workplace. The followings are examples of energy saving 115181 - TRITEIRERE - NEET

measures adopted by the Group: BRANEVERBEFEBERFILA T -

—  maximizing the use of natural light and energy-saving systems; - HEFRBASNERRL

- zoning for optimal control of lighting and air-conditioning; - DERECEIHIRARER

- using energy-saving light bulbs, installing and purchasing energy-efficient office - AR REREESE
equipment; W

- maintaining the room temperature at an average of 26 C; - ERRFETH6T

- maintaining air conditioning systems and cleaning the filters of air conditioners - THSEETRRGRBERZTAB
on a regular basis; BES

~  switching off air conditioning systems and lighting in vacant working areas - ZERHRAEREHEAEEIER
after operation hours; H ARG LR

~  tuming off office equipment when not in use; - BRTMERNRARE

- switching off water dispenser after operation hours; and —  EEERREAS R SOKE

&

- putting reminder message about the importance of energy and resources —  ERAEEESZERAEAE

savings on or next to office equipment. RAERNEZNRT -
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R HEBRERES

While complying with environmental laws and regulations, the Company strongly
encourages all employees to focus on energy conservation and emission reduction
in their work and reduce GHG emissions and promote indoor air quality. As at 31
December 2020, the Group used a total of 209,804kWh of electricity, a decrease
of 34,549kWh of electricity as compared with 244,353kWh as at 31 December
2019. The electricity consumption intensity was 213.1kWh/square meters for
the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared with 248.1kWh/square meters
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group aims at reducing the use of
electricity by 10,000kWh for the year ending 31 December 2021.

The Group does not involve any production and manufacturing processes,
however, the Group still persists on raising staff awareness of water conservation
and regularly checking office pipes to prevent leakage. The Group encourages
employees to save water. For the year ended 3| December 2020, the Group
used a total of 577 tonnes of water, a decrease of 524 tonnes of water from as
compared with |,101 tonnes of water used as of 3|1 December 2019. The water
consumption intensity was 7.5 tonnes/employee for the year ended 31 December
2020, as compared with 15.3 tonnes/employee for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Group aims at monitoring the water consumption to not more than 800
tonnes for the year ending 31 December 2021. To achieve this target, the Group
will continue to encourage its employees to actively participate in the activities
of saving water resources within the Group and to do its best to protect water

resources.

Due to the nature of business, the Group does not use any packaging material

during the course of its business.
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The Environmental and Natural Resources

Waste management and reduction are crucial to conservation of the earth’s finite
resources. In order to improve waste management mechanisms, the Group has
adopted various waste reduction measures, especially in cutting down paper
consumption in the course of operation and purchase of paper made scratch top-

up cards.

The Group encourages staff to view the documents on electronic devices instead of
printing out hard copies. When printing is unavoidable, duplex printing is defaulted
and staffs are encouraged to reuse the single-sided printed papers. The designated
collection points have been set up in the workplace to facilitate paper and toner
cartridges recycling. Staff are also advised to reuse office consumables. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group used a total of approximately 90,000
pieces of paper (2019: 123,000 pieces). The Group will continue to recommend
green office and conserve resources. The Group will continue to contribute to
the sustainable development of mankind, while continuously enhancing its business

capabilities.

Regarding to the Group's paper made top-up cards inventory, the Group has
chosen to purchase larger proportion of virtual top-up cards, supplemented by
a small amount of prepaid paper made top-up cards. For the year ended 3|
December 2020, the Group purchased a total of 1,787,253 pieces of paper made
top-up cards, a decrease of 41.9% as compared with 3,074,169 cards for the year
ended 31 December 2019, For the already-purchased paper made top-up cards,
the Group stipulates that once the prepaid card are used, they shall be sent to the
designated collection points for paper recycling so as to reduce the waste of paper

and increase the paper recycling rate.
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RIE HEREAR

A4

wE

The Group understands that good air and water quality are vital to health. The
Group cares about its staff and therefore makes every effort to provide a healthy
workplace environment for them. The Group has implemented various measures to
maintain good indoor air quality for staff, such as regular cleaning of air-conditioning
systems and filters of air conditioners. Professional cleaning personnel are engaged

to maintain the indoor environment of workplaces.

Climate change

As the Group engaged in mobile top-up services that can perform at in-house,
significant climate-related issues do not affect daily operating activities. In view
of extreme weather such as typhoons and thunderstorms that are occasionally
happened during summer, the Group provides guidance to employees whether
commuting to office is required under extreme weathers. The Group has policies
in place to ensure doors and windows are closed properly after work, in order to

prevent any damages by overnight typhoons and thunderstorms.

SOCIAL

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of an enterprise
and regards human resources as its corporate wealth in maintaining its leading
position in the mobile top-up service industry. To empower our staff, the Group
continuously provides on-the-job trainings and development opportunities to
enhance employees’ career progression. The Group offers competitive employment
package and benefits to attract and retain competent persons. The Group also
cherishes employees’ well-being and strives to provide them with a healthy and safe

working environment.
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Employment

Workforce

The Group keeps track of the updates of the laws and regulations in the PRC and
has strictly abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the labour Law of
the PRC (FEE AR EFBIZENE) and the labour Contract Law of the PRC (R
EARENBEBEERFE) for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group
has entered into labour contracts with all employees to protect their legitimate
rights and interests. Recruitment is open for all qualified personnel and conducted
in a fair, just and open manner, and recruitment information is announced with
the Company's information or disclosed to the public. Recruitment and promotion
are based on the candidates’ capability instead of other factors such as gender,
race, age and religion. All employees and candidates enjoy equal opportunities and
fair treatment. The Group has established a selection and evaluation system to
optimize the allocation of human resources and internal promotion. The philosophy
of developing a wide array of talents helps to build up the overall strength of the

Group and maintaining its leading position in the industry.

The Group has also established policies and procedures regarding the dismissal of
its employees. Compensation for dismissed personnel is well settled and the Group
has strictly abided by the provision of labour Law of the PRC (FHZE A R FNE
E5E))%). The Group will conduct interviews and conversations with dismissed
personnel to comfort their frustrations and collect their feedbacks. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group had not received any complaint or involved

in any legal proceeding related to dismissal matters.

The comprehensive workforce is essential to optimize the Group's operation. As at
31 December 2020, the Group had 77 full time employees, an increase of 6.9% as
compared to the 72 employees as at 31 December 2019. The female to male ratio
is approximately 1:0.7. The Group's employees were allocated in departments of
research & development (32.5%), marketing sales and purchasing (10.4%), customer
services (16.9%), administration (7.8%) and others (32.4%). The Group had a young
and energetic workforce, with the 41.6% were aged below 30 and 45.5% were
aged 31-40.
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Analysis of 2019 and 2020 annual employee turnover rate TE-NFER-BCEEFERERDE

The Group's employee turnover rate in 2020 was 6.10%, which was decreased AEENEERIEIN_T_TF

by 36.8% as compared to the turnover rate of 42.9% in 2019. The decrease in £6.10%  MZT— NLEFHI42.9%FE K

turnover rate mainly attributed to the restructuring in 2019. 368% c MBEBREFERAN_T—
NEETER -

THE EMPLOYEE TURNOVER RATE OF 2019 AND 2020
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Benefits and Compensation

The Group endeavours to offer a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
package to attract, retain and motivate talent employees. Remuneration adjustments
are based on staffs' performance and their overall quality of work. Based on the
performance and the potential of employees as well as the macroeconomic
environment, the Group offers attractive fringe benefits, reasonable level of salary
increase and flexible individual holiday arrangements so as to ensure a balanced life

for its employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group strictly abided by the provisions
of labour Law of the PRC (F#E A RHMEILE)7%) and the provisions of the
Company's staff handbook expressly specify the working hours and rest periods.
The Group adopts an eight-hour shift, five working days and the staff are also
entitled to statutory holiday. For the staff who cannot enjoy the statutory holiday
while on shift, the Group will provide overtime pay according to the relevant laws
and regulations. Apart from the usual annual leave and paid sick leave, the Group
also offers additional leave entitlements for other circumstances like marriage,
bereavement, maternity, paternity and work-related injury, etc, which allows the
staff to have flexible leave arrangement. The Group also grants certain amount of

mobile credit as birthday gifts for all employees.

Equal Opportunities

To ensure equal employment and advancement opportunities for all individuals,
the Group assesses individuals based on their experience, qualifications and
abilities when it comes to employment, remuneration and promotion. The Group's
employment practices will under no circumstances, be influenced or affected by a
candidate’s or employee’s race, gender, age, disability or family status. The Group
offers equal working opportunities and discourages any kind of discrimination,

including discriminating on the basis of the personal characteristics of its employee.
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Health and Safety

The Group has committed to provide employees with a safe working environment
and pay tremendous attention to employees’ own health. The Group has strictly
abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the labour Law of the PRC (F
#E AR LB E))%) and the Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance (T
SR 16 1) for the year ended 3| December 2020.

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial work
environment. The Group is required to comply with work safety laws and
regulations imposed by the government authorities in the PRC. The Group has
implemented various occupational health and safety procedures to maintain a
safe work environment, including (i) providing guidelines for operational and
safety control procedures to all employees; (i) adopting protective measures at
its facilities; (iii) inspecting facilities regularly to identify and eliminate safety hazard,
and (iv) providing trainings to employees on safety awareness. Inspections and
management review of health and safety policies have been performed to ensure

the effectiveness of the arrangements, training and guidelines.

In view of COVID-19 outbreak, the Group has implemented hygiene measures in

the workplace including:
» Social distancing at the workplace

+  Temperature taking and recording before entering the Group's premises

*  Use hand sanitizer provided
* Wear face mask all the time

+ Disinfect entire office before starting work

*  Briefing matters about COVID-19 to all staff
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In addition, the Group prioritizes the health and well-being of its employees.
In order to provide employees with sufficient medical care, in addition to the
medical insurance coverage required by laws, the Group has provided pension,
unemployment, occupational injury and maternity insurance for its employees in
compliance with applicable PRC laws and regulations. As the Group's business
expands, the Group will continue to regularly review and assess its risk portfolio
and adjust its insurance coverage based on its need and industry practice. The
Group has also provided annual medical check-ups for its employees and carried

out cultural and sports activities to promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

The Group did not encounter any major accident during the operation which
brought death of employees in each of the three past years including the year
ended 3| December 2020. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
did not encounter any accident which made any employees suffer loss of work days

because of injuries on job.

Development and Training

The Group believes nurturing talents is the cornerstone of the Group's business
development. The Group has committed to offer different training opportunities
to its staff, to provide them with a suitable platform for career advancement and
professional development. The Group holds regular trainings for new employees
in order to build cohesion amongst new joiners as well as provide in depth
understanding of the Company's philosophy and strategies. The Group also
encourages employees to share their specialty knowledge and experience with
other departments’ colleague in order to improve everyone's comprehensive
competence and horizon. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
arranged all the department to launch related training course within colleagues,
such as technical department courses, new employee orientation, work trainings
and some experience exchanging seminars. All of the employees participated the
trainings and the average training hours completed per employees were 3 hours.
Directors and management attended a two-hour continuous professional training

courses organized by Company's legal advisor.
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child and forced labour in the Group, and is
fully committed to create a work environment which respects human rights. Staff of
human resources department audit and verify staff identity during the recruitment

process to ensure that no child labour will be employed.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of rights and interests
for employees, strictly complies with the relevant provisions of national and local
employee rights and interests. The provisions of the Company's staff handbook
expressly specifies the working hours, rest and leave, labour protection and so on

to encourage work-life balance and prevent any compulsory labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES

B5

Supply Chain Management

The Group selects telecommunication operators, distributors of telecommunications
operators, e-commerce platform and third-party online game operators (collectively
“suppliers”), to support the business operations, and is committed as much as
possible to conduct the business with suppliers that act in a socially responsible
manner to meet the ethical expectations. As at 31 December 2020, the Company
had 126 suppliers (2019: 198). As a specialized mobile top-up service provider in
the PRC, the Group understands the importance to work closely with its supply
chain to ensure the sustainability of the Group's business. A supplier evaluation
system in terms of price, quality, cost, delivery and after-sales service has been
established by the Group and applies to all suppliers. The Group carries out long-
term quality monitoring and conducts regular reviews on all suppliers as well as
random examination on different suppliers to ensure sustainable quality material
supplies and services. The Group will also take into account suppliers’ reputation,
their track record of high corporate standards, expertise, capacity and etc. so as to
select the qualified suppliers and appropriate management's approval is required
before entering an agreement. Such procedures aim to support operational

efficiency and segregation of duties.
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Product Responsibilities

On the basis of strictly abiding by the relevant laws and regulations, the Group has
taken a variety measures to ensure the quality of service. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group was not aware of any violation of the laws and
regulations on its services (including advertising, labelling, service quality, customer
privacy protection and consumer right etc.) and any event that had material impact
on the Group. The Group did not have any services provided subject to recalls for

safety and health reasons.

The Group primarily engages in providing mobile top-up services and data usage
top-up services. The Group has developed a reliable, secure and scalable platform,
007ka top-up platform, through which the Group processes mobile top-up request
received from mobile users. The Group has committed to deliver high-quality top-
up services through its 007ka top-up platform and WeChat public account to the
customers. In order to ensure delivery of high-quality top-up services, the Group
has in place a real-time automatic mechanism to monitor irregularities of top-
up results such that administrator can deal with such irregularities proactively and
enable customers to enjoy fast, reliable and convenient top-up services. The Group
provides customer services on a 24/7 basis to enhance service quality, in particular,
to PRC banks, the Group has also established a 24-hour real-time monitoring
mechanism which reports irregularities in the systems to relevant personnel so
that irregularities can be dealt proactively. The above monitoring systems allow the
Group to quickly respond to and resolve network malfunction issues to ensure the
stability and security of the network and the mobile top-up services. In addition, the
Group has also maintained a dedicated customer service team to exclusively handle

enquiries or complaints from different channel partners’ customers.
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The customer service team and the customer hotline numbers are posted on the
websites of the channel partners and the Company's websites. Users who use
the mobile top-up services through the channel partners can make enquiries or
complaints through the customer hotlines of the Company. The Group defines
complaints as customers’ explicit or implicit expressions of dissatisfaction with the
mobile top-up or data top-up services, which requires the actions to resolve the
problem and the response to the customers about the solution. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group received 83 complaints from customers,
increased by 14.4% as compared with 160 complaints for the year ended 3|
December 2019. These customer's complaints are generally associated with delays
in the top-up process, unsuccessful recharges and failure of users to receive mobile
top-up results. Upon receipt of complaints from customers, the customer service
team makes preliminary judgment on the nature of the complaints and provides
instruction to guide customers to solve problems. Unresolved complaints relating
to urgent or material issues are escalated to the relevant managers on-duty. The
Group also closely monitors the feedbacks from customers. Through collecting
and analyzing customer feedbacks, the high-quality customer service team helps to
enhance customer satisfaction and loyalty. For cases of unsuccessful mobile top-up
requests, recharge of the mobile accounts for customers or refund of payments for

the mobile top-up services to customers per their requests are usually adopted.

The Group emphasizes the importance of protecting the privacy of its channel
partners and customers, and has complied with relevant laws and regulations
during the collection, processing and use of customer's personal data. Employees
have signed the non-disclosure agreement to ensure the protection of customer’s
personal data. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not
receive complaints from channel partners or customers due to unauthorized

disclosure of information.
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Since the Group is principally engaged in providing mobile top-up services to
mobile users through electronic banking systems of PRC banks, offline channels and
other channels including third-party online platforms, its own websites and WeChat
public account, no massive advertising campaigns were launched by the Group. In
addition, due to the nature of the Group's business, labelling of products was not

applicable to the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Company has strictly abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the
Criminal Law of the PRC (F#E A RHMEIFIE), the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the PRC (FEAREMB R T IEE #HF %) and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of PRC (FZE AR HEMBEIREERIZ) for the year ended 3
December 2020. The Group is committed to prevent and monitor any malpractice
or unethical actions. The Group maintains and effectively implements whistle-
blowing procedures for anti-corruption and anti-fraud and is committed to promote
integrity and prevent unethical issues. The Group encourages the reporting of

suspected business irregularities and provides clear channels specifically for this

purpose.

The Group requests its staff to maintain a high level of business ethics to protect
the interests and business operations of the Group. To reinforce staffs integrity, the
Group has established the code of conduct and laid down procedures in the staff
handbook to fight against corruption, bribery, extortion and fraud. The Group has
established regulations and procedures to prevent and monitor money laundering in
the operations. All new joiners are well briefed of these regulations and procedures
during orientation and existing members can assess relevant information in the
Group's intranet to raise their awareness on anti-corruption, anti-fraud and anti-

money laundering.

When suspected wrongdoings are identified, such as breach of duty, abuse
of power, receiving bribes, staff can report to the secretariat of the Board for
investigation and resolution. The secretariat will then carry out investigation and
verification, and report to the regulator or law enforcement authority when

necessary.
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The Group is committed to adhere to the highest ethical standards. During the
year ended 3| December 2020, the Group had not been a party to any corruption,
bribery or fraud proceedings and was not aware of any pending or threatened
proceedings related to corruption against the Group or any of the Directors. The
Group will continue to comply with ethical requirements and upholds its reputation

to prevent corruption.

Community Investment

The Group has not established a specific community policy, however, social care
is deep-seated in the Group's corporate culture and the Group is committed to
its corporate responsibilities by proactively participating in community and charity
works, The Group has placed a petty cash donation box in office to collect petty
cash from its staff for making donations to non-profit organizations, including

charities and caring houses.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited Consolidated Financial

Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is the provision of mobile top-up services to mobile
users in the PRC through electronic banking systems of PRC banks, and other channels,
including third-party online platforms, the Group's self-operated websites and WeChat

public account.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
principal activities of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page
109. The financial position as at 31 December 2020 of the Group is set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 110 to I11. The cash flow of the
Group during the year 31 December 2020 is set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows on pages |13 to | 14.

The Directors did not recommend payment of final dividend in respect of the year ended

31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group during the vear ended 3| December 2020 and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman's
Statement on pages 5 to 8. A discussion on the key financial performance indicators of the
Group for year ended 31 December 2020 is provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report. The review and discussion thereof form

part of this Report of the Directors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The following are among the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business of the

Group:

. The Group provides mobile top-up services through electronic banking systems
to customers of PRC banks. The Group's business depends on establishing and
maintaining relationships with PRC banks. The Group's failure to continue the
contractual relationship with existing PRC banks or enter into business relationships
with additional PRC banks in a timely manner or on favorable terms may impair the
Group's ability to continually expand its business; changes in the rate of commission
fees charged by the PRC banks may also have a significant impact on the Group's

cost of revenue and gross profit margin;

. the Group's reliance on the PRC telecommunication operators and their
distributors to source mobile top-up credits, any deterioration or termination of
the Group's relationships with them may result in severe disruptions to the Group’s
business operations, loss of revenues and a material and adverse effect on the
Group's financial condition and results of operations. The Group's profit margin may
also be effected by the decline in the discounts offered by PRC telecommunication

operators and their distributions in the future;

. the Group's ability to grow its business depends, in part, upon policies of the PRC
telecommunication operators. If the PRC telecommunication operators decide to
continue expand mobile top-up services or cooperate with PRC banks or third-
party online platforms directly, the Group's results of operations may be materially

and adversely affected;

. the Group's business may face competition from the other mobile top-up services,
local branches of the three PRC telecommunication operators and E-commerce
platforms. If the Group or the PRC banks fail to compete effectively, the Group’s
market share may decrease and the Group's business, financial condition and

prospect will be materially and adversely affected;
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. the Group's business and results of operations may be effected by the growth of
internet market and mobile penetration and usage in the PRC, changes in customer
behaviors and preferences on the mobile top-up channels. Any decline in the
popularity of online top-up services in general, or the Group's failure to respond
to industry trends and customer requirements, may adversely affect the Group's

business and results of operations;

. development of the PRC telecommunication industry could be negatively affected
by factors such as unfavorable government policies and changes of consumer
preferences which may decrease spending on mobile telecommunication services. If
the PRC telecommunication industry does not develop as anticipated, the Group's
business may be harmed and the Group may need to adjust its growth strategy and

the Group's results of operation may be adversely affected; and

. the Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may
be influenced to a significant degree by political, economic and social conditions and

government policies in the PRC.

The details of risk factors are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors” in the

prospectus of the Company dated 24 December 2015 (the “Prospectus”).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For the purposes of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM,

the Company's register of members will be closed during the following periods:
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To be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly stamped instruments of transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company's share registrar in Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the latest time as stated above.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note

3| to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the change in the share capital of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2020 are set out in note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in reserve of the Company (which is the same as distributable
reserve of the Company) during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note

32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have distributable reserve available
for distribution to Shareholders. The distributable reserves are calculated under the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the year ended 3|

December 2020 are set out in note |5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MAJOR CHANNEL PARTNERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the gross transaction value derived from
the Group's five largest channel partners accounted for approximately 83.1% of the
Group's total gross transaction value. The Group's largest channel partner contributed to

approximately 55.3% of the Group's total gross transaction value.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the cost of sourcing from Group's five
largest suppliers who are telecommunication operators and distributors accounted for
approximately 52.4% of the Group's total sourcing cost. The cost of sourcing from the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 17.1% of the Group's total sourcing

cost.

As far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors nor his/her close associates and
none of the Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors possessing over 5%
of the interest in the capital of the Company) possessed any interest in the Group's five

largest channel partners and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Relationships with Employees

The Group believes that employees are its greatest assets. The Group believes that
a good working environment promotes employees’ physical and psychological well-
being. The Group provides on-the-job training and career development opportunities
to its employees to enhance staff professional skills and retain talents. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the employees. The
Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary

adjustments to conform to the market standard.

Relationships with Channel Partners
The Group’s mobile top-up business consists of mobile top-up services through electronic
banking systems of PRC banks and third-party online platforms, Group's self-operated

websites and Group's WeChat public account.
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The Group primarily provides mobile top-up services through electronic banking systems
of PRC banks and the gross transaction value derived through electronic banking systems
accounted for approximately 94.1% of the total gross transaction value in 2020. The
Group maintained long-term cooperative relationships with PRC banks as a result of the
Group's satisfactory service quality, strong brand recognition and reputation and leading
market position. The Group had an average of approximately eleven years of business
relationship with the five largest state-owned commercial banks. The Group worked with
67 PRC banks, including the five largest state owned commercial banks and 10 of the 12
nation-wide joint stock commercial banks up to the end of 2020. The Group also utilized
other channels (third-party online platforms, Group's websites and its WeChat public
account) to provide mobile top-up services. The Group evaluates the effectiveness and

profitability of each channel when considering cooperation with the online platforms.

Relationships with Customers

The Group primarily provides mobile top-up services to mobile users, who are customers
of the Group's channel partners, including PRC banks, offline channel partners and other
channel partners. In other words, customers of the Group's channel partners are the
Group's indirect customers. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the number of
mobile users who used the Group's services was approximately 66.8 million and the five

largest customers collectively contribute less than 30% of the gross transaction value.

Relationships with Suppliers

The Group primarily sources mobile top-up credits from PRC telecommunication
operators and their distributors. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
business relationships with 126 suppliers. The Group maintained long term relationship
with most of suppliers, and the Group's five largest suppliers had an average of

approximately eight years of business relationships with the Group.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this annual

report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Junmou (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Hua (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. LI Xiangcheng

Mr. XU Xinhua

Mr. YU Zida

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhangxi

Mr. QIAN Haomin

Ms. ZHAQ Jinlin

In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles, Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Xu Xin Hua
and Mr. Yu Zida will retire in the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, have offered
themselves to be re-elected and re-appointed at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company are set

out on pages |7 to 23 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
and is appointed for a specific term of three years commencing from | January 2021
unless terminated by not less than three months' notice in writing served by either the

executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a specific term of three years commencing from 18 June 2020 unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the

other.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company on 21 June 2020. Each of these letters of appointment is for a term of

three years commencing from 21 June 2020.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of directors are set
out in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and recommending to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the chairman and chief

executive officer.

There was no service contract entered into/appointment letter signed by the Company
and any Directors to be re-elected in the forthcoming AGM which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors independent.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and five highest paid individuals for the
year ended 3| December 2020 are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the emolument policy of the Company is set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 24 to 46 of this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended

31 December 2020.

Directors’ remuneration is subject to Shareholder's approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties
and responsibilities, the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. No Directors, or any of their respective associates,
was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration for the year ended 3| December
2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and in the section
headed “Connected Transactions” of this annual report, no Director or an entity
connected with a Director has or had a material beneficial interest, directly or indirectly, in
any transaction and arrangement or contract of significance subsisting as at 31 December

2020 or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no Directors or their respective associates has
engaged in or has any interest in any business which were in competition or were likely to

compete, directly or indirectly with the business of the Group.

RELEVANT SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Relevant Shareholders (as defined below) or their subsidiary has or had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for
the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the group to which the company

or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 3| December 2020.
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COMPLIANCE OF THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company entered into a deed of non-competition
(‘Non-Competition Deed") with Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua, Mr. Li Xiangcheng,
Mr. Xu Xinhua, Fun Charge Technology Limited (‘Fun Charge Technology™), Happy
Charge Technology Limited (“Happy Charge Technology™), Cool Charge Technology
Limited (“Cool Charge Technology") and Enjoy Charge Technology Limited (“Enjoy
Charge Technology") (collectively, the “Relevant Shareholders™) on 23 September
2015, under which the Relevant Shareholders jointly and severally agreed not to, whether
as principal or agent whether undertaken directly or indirectly (including through any
associate, subsidiary, partnership, join venture or other contractual arrangement of
theirs) and whether for profit or otherwise, carry on, engage, invest, participate or hold
any right or be interested in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition, directly or indirectly, or is likely to be in competition,
directly or indirectly, with the business referred to in the Prospectus that is carried on or

contemplated to be carried on by any member of the Group.

Notwithstanding the above, the foregoing restrictions do not preclude any of the Relevant
Shareholders from having any interest in shares of not more than 5% in any company
which is or whose holding company is listed on any recognized stock exchange even
though the business carried out by such company is or is likely to be in competition
with the business, provided that the aggregate number of shares held by the Relevant
Shareholders do not exceed 5% of the issued shares of such company and none of the
Relevant Shareholders is a director of such company or is entitled to appoint any director

of such company.

Each of the Relevant Shareholders has undertaken in the Non-Competition Deed that
during the term of the Non-Competition Deed, if a new business opportunity is made
available to any Relevant Shareholder or its/his respective associates, such Relevant
Shareholder will or will procure that its/his associates to notify the Company in writing
and provide to the Company all information that is reasonably necessary for the Company
to consider whether or not to pursue such business opportunity. For details of the Non-
Competition Deed, please refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling

Shareholders- Deed of Non-Competition” in the Prospectus.
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The Company has received confirmations from the Relevant Shareholders confirming
their compliance with the Non-Competition Deed for disclosure in this annual report for
the year ended 3| December 2020. The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed the compliance and enforcement status of the Non-Competition Deed based
on the confirmations and information provided by the Relevant Shareholders and the
Company, and are of the view that as far as they can ascertain, they are not aware that
the Relevant Shareholders have not abided by the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interest or short positions of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which would be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or
which would be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code were as follows:
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Notes:

Mr. Huang Junmou beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Fun Charge Technology. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang Junmou is deemed to be interested in 94,500,000 Shares held
by Fun Charge Technology.

Mr. Yang Hua beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Happy Charge Technology. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yang Hua is deemed to be interested in 63,000,000 Shares held by
Happy Charge Technology.

Mr. Li Xiangcheng beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Cool Charge Technology. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Xiangcheng is deemed to be interested in 56,100,000 Shares held
by Cool Charge Technology.

Mr. Xu Xinhua beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Enjoy Charge Technology. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Xinhua is deemed to be interested in 26,400,000 Shares held by
Enjoy Charge Technology.

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's total issued share
capital of 415,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and chief

executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions

in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352

of the SFO, or which was required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
As at 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following persons

(other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed or taken

to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which are

required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of

SFO were as follows:

Substantial shareholders

Capacity/Nature of interest
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares or issued share
securities held capital®
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Fun Charge Technology!" Beneficial owner 94,500,000 22.77%
ESBEAA

Happy Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 63,000,000 15.18%
ERBERA

Cool Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 56,100,000 13.52%
ExfBA

Mr. Huang Shaowu® Interested in controlled corporation 60,000,000 14.46%

BRRELE RIEEE R

China Charge Technology Limited® Beneficial owner 60,000,000 14.46%
ERBERA

Enjoy Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 26,400,000 6.36%
EsfBA

Notes: Pt

(1) Mr. Huang Junmou is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Fun

Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang Junmou is deemed to be interested in

94,500,000 Shares held by Fun Charge Technology.

(2)  Mr. Yang Hua is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Happy

Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yang Hua is deemed to be interested in

63,000,000 Shares held by Happy Charge Technology.
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(3)  Mr. Li Xiangcheng is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Cool
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Xiangcheng is deemed to be interested in
56,100,000 Shares held by Cool Charge Technology.

(4)  Mr. Huang Shaowu is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of China
Charge Technology Limited (“China Charge Technology”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang
Shaowu is deemed to be interested in 60,000,000 Shares held by China Charge Technology.

(5 Mr. Xu Xinhua is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Enjoy
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Xinhua is deemed to be interested in
26,400,000 Shares held by Enjoy Charge Technology.

(6)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's total issued share
capital of 415,000,000 Shares as at 3|1 December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, no

Shareholders has agreed to waive or waived any dividends.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person who will have an
interest or short position in Shares or underlying Shares which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Division 2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme prepared in accordance with Chapter |7 of the
Listing Rules on 14 December 2015 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) as defined in the Scheme to
recognize and acknowledge their contribution to the Group and motivate them to higher

levels of performance.

Certain provisions of the Scheme were amended and approved in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 4 November 2016, the definition of Eligible
Participants in the Scheme was amended to include the advisors, consultants, suppliers,
customers, distributors, business partners and such other persons who, in the opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any of its

subsidiaries as participants eligible to participate in the Scheme.
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Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to Eligible Participants options (the

"Option(s)”) to subscribe for Shares subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the

Scheme.

(i

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is established to recognize and acknowledge the
contributions that Eligible Participants had or may have made to the Group. The
Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with the view to achieve the objective of attracting and
retaining high caliber Eligible Participants to motivate the Eligible Participants to

higher levels of performance and to promote the success of the Group’s business.

Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant options to:

(i) any full-time employees of the Company or its subsidiaries;

(i) any executive or non-executive Directors (including independent non-

executive Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries; and

(i) the advisors, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors, business partners
and such other persons who, in the opinion of the Board, will contribute or

have contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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(ii)

Acceptance of an offer of Options

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the grantee and
to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document constituting acceptances
of the Options duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received
by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance date. Such payment shall
in no circumstances be refundable. Any offer to grant an Option to subscribe for
Shares may be accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for which it
is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares
on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof and such number is clearly
stated in the duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the Opinion.
To the extent that the offer to grant an Option is not accepted by any prescribed

acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be granted
under the Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the company
must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the total number of Shares issued on 7
January 2016, being 40,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 9.64% of the
Company's issued share capital as at the date of this annual report, excluding
for this purpose Shares which would have been issuable pursuant to Options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (or any other
share option schemes of the Company). Subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company and the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board

may:

(i) refresh this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of

the approval by our Shareholders in general meeting; and/or
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(i)

grant options beyond the 0% limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board. The circular issued by the Company to the
Shareholders shall contain a generic description of the specified Eligible
Participants who may be granted such Options, the number and terms of
the Options to be granted, the purpose of granting Options to the specified
Eligible Participants with an explanation as to how the Options serve
such purpose, the information required under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to the effect of alterations to
capital, the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options
shall be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the Scheme)

if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise

of the Options granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of

the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible

Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of

the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of Options in excess of

this 1% limit shall be subject to:

the issue of a circular by the Company containing the identity of the Eligible
Participant, the numbers and terms of the Options to be granted (and
Options previously granted to such participant) the information as required
under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of
the Listing Rules; and

\0
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(vi)

(vii)

(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time with
such Eligible Participant and his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
abstaining from voting. The numbers and terms (including the exercise
price) of Options to be granted to such participant must be fixed before
the Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board meeting at which the
Board proposes to grant the Options to such Eligible Participant shall be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the subscription

price of the Shares.

Option Period

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the Option is deemed to be granted and accepted
and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
Option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no Option may be exercised more than |0 years after it has been
granted. No Option may be granted more than |0 years after the date of approval
of the Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years

from the date of its adoption.

The subscription price per Share
The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall

determine, save that such price must be at least the highest of:

() the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant in respect of the

relevant Options;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant or where the Company has been
listed for less than five trading days, the new issue price shall be used as the

closing price; and

(i)~ the nominal value of the Shares.
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(viiiy Remaining life of the scheme
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on |4
December 2015.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and up to the date of this annual report, no Option

had been granted, exercised, lapsed nor cancelled under the Scheme.

For details of the Scheme, please refer to the section headed “Statutory and General

Information — F. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Contractual Arrangements

The Company is primarily engaged in, through Shenzhen NNK; the provision of
mobile top-up services and data usage top-up services (the “Principal Business”),
which is considered to be value-added telecommunications services, a sector where
foreign investment is subject to significant restrictions under PRC laws and regulations.
Accordingly, the Company, as foreign investors, cannot directly hold controlling interest
in Shenzhen NNK; the Company's PRC Operating Entity, which holds certain licenses
and permits required for the operation of the Company's principal business. As a result,
the Company's wholly foreign-owned enterprise (the “WFOE"), Daily Charge Shenzhen
entered into a series of contractual arrangements with Shenzhen NNK, the Company's
PRC Operating Entity, and its shareholders (the “Contractual Arrangements”) in order
to conduct the Principal Business in the PRC and to exercise effective control over the
operations of, and enjoy all economic benefits of, the Company’'s PRC Operating Entity.
The series of the Contractual Arrangements as a whole allow the financial performance
and economic benefits of the business of Shenzhen NNK to be included in the financial
information of the Company as if the Company is the parent company of Shenzhen NNK.
Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, Shenzhen NNK has an obligation to pay the
consulting and technical supporting services fees to WFOE and WFOE has legal rights
to retain such fees as its revenue, and the Company is able to acquire the entire profit
(including the retained eamings) of Shenzhen NNK under the terms of the Contractual

Arrangements.
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Shenzhen NNK is owned as to 31.5% by Mr. Huang Junmou, 21% by Mr. Yang Hua,
18.7% by Mr. Li Xiangcheng, 8.8% by Mr. Xu Xinhua and 20% by Mr. Huang Shaowu
(collectively, the “Registered Shareholders”). Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and
the Registered Shareholders, as the case may be, entered into the following agreements as

at 31 December 2020:

The management and operation agreement dated 4 March 2015 and its
supplemental agreement dated 16 April 2015 entered into among Daily Charge
Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, pursuant to which
Daily Charge Shenzhen agreed to provide to Shenzhen NNK and its subsidiaries
management and operation services. Pursuant to the management and operation
agreement, Shenzhen NNK shall pay to Daily Charge Shenzhen a service fee that
equals to 100% of the annual revenue of Shenzhen NNK after deducting costs
and expenses (except the service fee) incurred during the course of management
and operation of Shenzhen NNK and any taxes, the prior-year loss (if any) and
contribution of social insurance and housing provident fund by Shenzhen NNK in
any given year. In addition, Daily Charge Shenzhen may at its absolute discretion
adjust the service fee or agree to any postponed payment so as to avoid any

financial difficulty of either Shenzhen NNK or itself.

2. The exclusive option agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily
Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, pursuant to
which the Registered Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally granted an
exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen which entitles Daily Charge Shenzhen to
elect to purchase, when permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or any part
of the equity interests in Shenzhen NNK from the Registered Shareholders itself
or through its designated person(s). Such designated person(s) shall be appointed
by Daily Charge Shenzhen in its sole discretion. The transfer price of the relevant
equity interests shall be the minimum purchase price permitted under PRC law,
and the Registered Shareholders have undertaken to return in full the consideration

received in relation to such transfer of equity interests to Daily Charge Shenzhen.
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The entrustment agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily Charge
Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, with an annexure of
the power of attorney dated 4 March 2015 executed by each of the Registered
Shareholders in favour of Daily Charge Shenzhen and/or its designated person(s).
Pursuant to the entrustment agreement and the powers of attorney annexed
thereto, each of the Registered Shareholders irrevocably agreed to authorize
Daily Charge Shenzhen or its designated person(s) to exercise all of his rights and
powers as shareholder of Shenzhen NNK, including the rights to convene and
attend shareholders’ meetings, to exercise voting rights in shareholders’ meetings,
to appoint and dismiss directors and supervisors, to decide on any acquisition or
disposal of his equity interest in Shenzhen NNK or the winding-up or dissolution
of Shenzhen NNK; to file documents with relevant government authorities or
regulatory bodies, and to exercise such other shareholders’ rights as stipulated

under the articles of association of Shenzhen NNK.

The equity pledge agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily
Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, pursuant to
which the Registered Shareholders agreed to pledge all of their respective equity
interests in Shenzhen NNK to Daily Charge Shenzhen to secure performance of
all their obligations and the obligations of Shenzhen NNK under the management
and operation agreement, the exclusive option agreement and the entrustment
agreement underlying the Contractual Arrangements. Under the equity pledge
agreement, if Shenzhen NNK declares any dividends during the term of the pledge,
Daily Charge Shenzhen is entitled to receive all dividends or other income arising
from the pledged equity interests, if any. If any of the Registered Shareholders
or Shenzhen NNK breaches or fails to fulfil the obligations under any of the
aforementioned agreements, Daily Charge Shenzhen, as the pledgee, will be

entitled to dispose of the pledged equity interests, entirely or partially.

The exclusive intellectual property purchase option agreement dated 4 March
2015 entered into between Shenzhen NNK and Daily Charge Shenzhen, pursuant
to which Shenzhen NNK agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally grant an
exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen to purchase certain of Shenzhen NNK's
intellectual properties, including but not limited to trademarks, patents, domain
names and copyright and whether registered or unregistered, entirely or partially, at

the minimum purchase price permitted by the PRC laws and regulations.
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The detailed terms of which are set out in the section headed "History, Reorganization

and Corporate Structure — Contractual Arrangements” of the Prospectus.

In addition, the Registered Shareholders granted the individual appointed by WFOE,
to exercise their shareholder’s rights, including without limitation, to declare, receive
or decline the dividends or distribution. In the event that the Registered Shareholders
receive any dividends or distribution of assets declared by Shenzhen NNK, the Registered
Shareholders are required to returmn the dividend or distribution of assets so received to
WEFOE. Therefore, WFOE controls the management and board of directors of Shenzhen
NNK and is able to acquire the entire profit generated from Shenzhen NNK under
the Contractual Arrangements. Apart from the above, there was no new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed or reproduced between the Group and the PRC
Obperational Entity during the year ended 31 December 2020. There was no material
change in the Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances during the year ended
31 December 2020. None of the contracts mentioned above has been unwound during
the year ended 31 December 2020 as none of the restrictions that led to the adoption of

the contracts under the Contractual Arrangements has been removed.

Set out below are certain key financial information of Shenzhen NNK as prepared in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards during the year ended 31 December

2020
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The Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are of the view that the
Contractual Arrangements are (i) fundamental to the Group's legal structure and business
operations; and (i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders

as a whole.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing connected transactions of the Group.

Waiver from Stock Exchange and Annual Renew

The Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules; (ii) the requirement of setting a maximum aggregate annual
value, i.e. an annual cap, for the fees payable to Daily Charge Shenzhen under the
Contractual Arrangements; and (iii) the requirement of limiting the term of the
Contractual Arrangements to three vears or less, for so long as the Shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange subject to certain conditions as disclosed on pages 204 to 205 of the

Prospectus.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS AND
THE ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY TO MITIGATE THE RISKS

Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENZHRBANER
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company

ARRRRAREE R

If the PRC government finds that the agreements that establish the
structure for operating the Company's business in the PRC do not
comply with PRC laws and regulations, or if these regulations or their
interpretations change in the future, the Company could be subject to
severe penalties or be forced to relinquish the Company’s interests in
those operations.
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The Directors will closely monitor the latest development of the
existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations (such as Foreign
Investment Law), and will take measures to ensure that the Company
is under the control of PRC investors so as to comply with relevant

rules and regulations in the PRC.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENZHERNER

Mitigation actions taken by the Company
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The Company's Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in
providing operational control as direct ownership and the Company's
PRC Operating Entity or its shareholders may fail to perform their

obligations under the Company’s Contractual Arrangements.

ARBWEHRE AR NI ERERERARRHERLE
ARANTEREERIERRATEREET ﬁ%m$@ﬂé%
ZH AL -

The Company may lose the ability to use assets held by its PRC
Operating Entity that are material to the operation of the Company’s
business if the Company's PRC Operating Entity declares bankruptcy or

becomes subject to a dissolution or liquidation proceeding.

MAARMFELEERSMKESXmERAEERER - IR
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According to the entrustment agreement and powers of attorney,
equity pledge agreement and the management and operation
agreement, the arbitration tribunal may decide compensation for the
equity interests or property ownership of PRC Operating Entity or
their shareholders, decide enforceable remedy or demand a bankrupt
on PRC Operating Entity or their shareholders for relevant business
or enforceable asset transfer. Any party is entitled to request the
competent court to execute the arbitration award when it comes into
effect.
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Pursuant to the exclusive option agreements, in the event of a
mandatory liquidation required by the laws of PRC, the Registered
Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally granted an exclusive
option to Daily Charge Shenzhen which entitles Daily Charge
Shenzhen to elect to purchase, when permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the equity interests in
Shenzhen NINK from the Registered Shareholders itself or through its
designated person(s). Such designated person(s) shall be appointed
by Daily Charge Shenzhen in its sole discretion. The transfer price
of the relevant equity interests shall be the minimum purchase price
permitted under PRC laws and the Registered Shareholders have
undertaken to retumn in full the consideration received in relation to
such transfer of equity interests to Daily Charge Shenzhen.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENZHERNER

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

A DR AR R R i

The Company's Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny by
the PRC tax authorities and additional taxes may be imposed. A finding
that the Company owes additional taxes could substantially reduce the

Company’s net income and the value of the investment.

PRI A LB S AR AN A A% B X Pl BE BRI SR -
WMERARREREBINGR - AR BER IR D AR RN AFER
FEEEE-

Having considered (i) the tax compliance certificate issued by
the relevant tax authorities; and (ii) that the Company has not
encountered any interference or encumbrances from any PRC
tax authority or other government authorities to the Contractual
Arrangements, the Directors are of the view that the Contractual
Arrangements are not likely to be challenged by the PRC tax authority
and other government authorities.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

HENZHEEBRNERE AN BRI E R IEE
The shareholders of the Company's PRC Operating Entity may have (a)  The independent non-executive Directors will review, on an

conflicts of interest with the Company, which may materially and

adversely affect the Company's business.

ARAFEELERNBRRALARRAENRER - EraY
RRBEBERERNNTE
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(d)

annual basis, the compliance with and enforcement of the
Non-Competition Deed that the Company entered into with
the Relevant Shareholders on 23 September 2015;
BIUFWTEERRFEHNALAEGRBERN -~
AFENAZT=RRINNTEFRENET RTER

each of the Relevant Shareholders undertakes to provide
all information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors and professional advisors
of the Company with regard to the compliance with and
enforcement of the Non-Competition Deed,
BARRES B AR IREE B FRTEE AR
BRI HFRBETIRTERETFEENM
LREPTAER ;

AEz
=B

each of the Relevant Shareholders will disclose decisions
on matters reviewed by our independent non-executive
Directors of the Company related to the compliance with and
enforcement of the Non-Competition Deed in the annual
report of, or by way of announcement; and
AARREERRFRINAEAAREBLIENTE
EMEHABETRATIRFREBENEEMELAR
E R

the Relevant Shareholders will make an annual declaration on
compliance with their undertaking under the Non-competition
Deed in the corporate governance report in Company's annual
report.
AREBRRERARAFRALEEARETHETER
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company

A DR AR R R i

The Contractual Arrangements between the Company’s WFOE and the
Company's PRC Operating Entity may subject the Group to increased
income tax due to the different income tax rates applicable to the
Company's WFOE and the PRC Operating Entity and adversely affect

the Company's results of operations.

AR AR TN R BT R E BT SBB ET
EEE  ALANNEBALERALTNFEELEE M
BRI AR AR BN SRR AL AT SRR
THgE -

The Company conducts its business operation in the PRC through its
PRC Operating Entity by way of the Contractual Arrangements, but
certain terms of the Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable

under PRC law.

ARRERTRELEBURORHN T AETFERREZXHKE
& EAORE TSR AR B BUARBHIHT -

The WFOE was accredited as a software enterprise in January 2016
and therefore is entitled to an income tax exemption for two years
starting from the first profitable year and an income tax rate of 12.5%
after a 50% reduction for the subsequent three years. From 2021
onward, the WFOE will be subjected to an income tax rate of 25%,
which will be the same as the income tax rate applicable to the PRC
Operating Entity.

SIEBELEN _T—RF-ABRAARGMHER] BAitE
BN EEENFEEFMEZBERAERNER = FH
FEFMEHBIR 125% M - B2021 12 - SMEBE KRR
VDA EBMPTET - AREFATEELEREROMEHR
BEAER -

The Contractual Arrangements contain provisions to the effect that
the arbitral body may award remedies over the shares and/or assets
of the Company's PRC Operating Entity, injunctive relief and/or
assets of the Company's PRC Operating Entity. These agreements
also contain provisions to the effect that courts of competent
jurisdictions are empowered to grant interim remedies in support of
the arbitration pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal. Any party
is entitled to request the competent court to execute the arbitration
award when it comes into effect.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENZHERNER

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

A DR AR R R i

If the Company exercises the option to acquire equity ownership of the

PRC Operating Entity, the ownership transfer must be approved or filed

with PRC governmental authorities and is subject to taxation, which may

result in substantial costs.

WMARRITEBRENBETELZER

BRLARTERGHRELESEER
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Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, Daily Charge Shenzhen
(or its designee) has the exclusive right to purchase all or any part of
the equity interests in the Company's PRC Operating Entity from the
respective shareholders for the minimum price permitted under the
then applicable PRC laws. The equity interest transfer is subject to the
approval from or filings with Ministry of Commerce of the PRC (the
“"MOFCOM"), Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of
PRC (the "MIIT") and/or their local competent branches. According
to the exclusive option agreement, the transfer price of the relevant
equity interests shall be the minimum purchase price permitted under
PRC law and the Registered Shareholders have undertaken to returmn
in full the consideration received in relation to such transfer of equity
interests to Daily Charge Shenzhen. In addition, the equity interest
transfer price may be subject to review and tax adjustment by the
relevant tax authority. The shareholders of the Company’s PRC
Operating Entity will be subject to PRC individual income tax on the
difference between the equity interest transfer price and the then
current registered capital of the Company's PRC Operating Entity.
The shareholders of the Company's PRC Operating Entity will pay,
after deducting any such tax, the remaining amount to Daily Charge
Shenzhen under the Contractual Arrangements. The amount to be
received by Daily Charge Shenzhen may also be subject to enterprise
income tax.
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For details of the risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements, please refer to the
section headed "Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our Contractual Arrangement” in the

Prospectus.

Pursuant to Rule 14A55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions under the Contractual Arrangements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and confirmed that these continuing connected

transactions have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iily  in accordance with the relevant arrangements governing them on terms that are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a

whole.
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The independent non-executive Directors have also confirmed that (i) the transactions
carried out during the year ended 31 December 2020 have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Contractual Arrangement, have been
operated so that the revenue generated by the Company's Operating Entity has been
substantially retained by Daily Charge Shenzhen; (i) no dividends or other distributions
have been made by the Company's PRC Operating Entity to the holders of its equity
interests which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group;
and (iii) there were no new contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced between the

Group and the PRC Operating Entity during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged the auditor of
the Company to carry out procedures in relation to the Contractual Arrangements
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work performed, the auditors of
the Company have provided a letter to the Board confirming that:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors of the Company to

believe that the Contractual Arrangements have not been approved by the Board;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors of the Company to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements under the Contractual Arrangements

governing such transactions; and

(i) nothing has come to their attention that caused the auditors of the Company to
believe that dividends or other distributions have been made by Shenzhen NNK to

their equity interest holders.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Other than
those transaction headed “Connected Transactions” above, none of them constitutes a

connected transaction required for disclosure under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions mentioned in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements are not continuing connected transactions which are subject to annual
reporting requirements under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules, hence there is no
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules for such

transactions.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Environmental Protection

As a specialized online transaction service provider, the Group's business does not involve
in production-related air, water and land pollutions which are regulated by the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC. No hazardous waste was produced by the Group in its

course of business in year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group complies with the relevant laws and regulations in environmental protection
and impact on the environment has always been a major focus of the Group. The
conscientious use of resources and adoption of best practices across the Group's business
operation underlies its commitment to protect the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to
the employees. The Group encourages all employees to be eco-friendly and participate in
energy and resources saving, such as encouraging duplex printing and reuse of single-sided
printed papers, saving water and electricity to reduce energy consumption. The Group will
continuously make efforts to put emphasis on environmental protection and sustainable

development.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group persists in maintaining good corporate governance and operating in
compliance with the laws and integnity through abidance by relevant laws and regulations,
industry regulations and business ethics. For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Group had not been and were not a party to any
material legal, arbitral or administrative proceedings, and the Group was not aware of any
pending or threatened legal, arbitral or administrative proceedings against the Group or
any of the Directors which could have a material adverse effect on the Group's operations

or financial condition.

Workplace Quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on the basis
of personal characteristics. The Group has employee handbooks outlining terms and
conditions of employment, expectations for employees' conduct and behavior, employees'
rights and benefits. The Group also establishes and implements policies that promote a

harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of an enterprise and regards
human resources as its corporate wealth. The Group provides on-the-job training and
development opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression. Through
different trainings, staff's professional knowledge in corporate operations, occupational and
management skills are enhanced. The Group has also organized wide range of activities for
employees, such as outings, professional skills sharing class and New Year celebration to

promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

Health and Safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial work environment.
Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. The Group prioritizes the health and well-being of staff.
In order to provide employees with adequate medical coverage, staff are entitled to free

medical check-ups, in addition to medical insurance required by laws.
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Training and Development

The Group is committed to the professional and personal development and growth of all
employees and considers training and development a continual process. Training courses
are provided to help employees develop and maintain consistency, proficiency and
professionalism. Structured training programs including courses, seminars and workshops
are offered to staff at all levels with the objective of grooming and unleashing their full
potential, organizational development and facilitating team synergies. Employees are
encouraged to take advantage of these programs to equip themselves with the skills and

knowledge for expanded career opportunities within the Group.

Commitment to Quality

The Group has made relentless efforts in delivering premium customer experience
with superior mobile top-up services. The staff have an acute judgment on market and
customers’ needs. Therefore, customer requests are promptly satisfied and steered
through establishing various channels to foster two-way communication. With a proactive
approach on continuous improvement in customer experience, the Board believes that

the Group can acquire competitive advantages in its business operation.

Management of Supply Chain

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria in selecting suppliers, and has
established a supplier evaluation system in terms of price, quality, cost, delivery and after-
sales service. The Group will carry out long-term quality monitoring and conduct regular
reviews on all suppliers as well as causal examination on different suppliers to ensure

quality supplies and services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance and
has complied with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Principal
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 24 to 46 contained in this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Articles provides that every director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
director of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which

judgment is given in his favour, or in which he or she is acquitted.
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The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs associated with

defending any proceeding which may be brought against the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES
During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing Shareholders.

BANK LOANS
All the bank loans of the Group are repayable on demand or within one year. Details
of the bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 24 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

DONATION
The Group did not make any donation during the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Scheme of the Company as set out in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 3|
December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company. If the Shareholders are unsure
about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are advised to consult

an expert.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the auditing, internal control and financial reporting matter,
including the review of the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended 3| December 2020 have been audited by the Company's external auditors,

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the past five financial

years is set out on page |88 of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no significant events that may affect the business operation and/or the

financial position of the Group subsequent to 31 December 2020.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date
and the Company raised net proceeds (after the exercise of the over-allotment option
and after deducting the underwriting fees, commissions and other expenses payable by
the Company in connection with the global offering of the Company) of approximately
HK$52.0 million. The utilisation of the net proceeds was in accordance with the proposed
allocations as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the

Prospectus, and details are as follows:

ERBEMEREMR

BOER LM R REBRRER LR - MA
DRAIBFFRFRE (BB BB TER R
BRADBRADBRNEHREERNNBHEE
- BEREMFASEK) DS20888T i
SREFROBADREARERA KK
S M EFIARSE | —EiFrEM S D B miE
17 FHEHIWMT

Total net proceeds Utilised as at Unutilised as at  Expected timeframe for
from the 3| December 31 December utilising the remaining
Intended use of proceeds from the global offering global offering 2020 2020  unused net Proceeds

R-Z-2F R-Z2-2F  ABANKAENE
2HBER  +-A=t-A +ZA=t-B FENHEH

PRBEMEHERERR FrEHERE EBHA ABA BARE
HK$ million HK$'million HK$'million  (Note i)
BEET BEET BEBT ()
Enhance the Group's brand recognition by channel partners 104 104 — NA
RITREAEBHUTRERENRRE TER
Upgrade hardware and network infrastructure 104 104 — NA
Bt RBE AR TEm
Software and research and development activities 78 34 44 By 30)une 2021
iR TIE —FXA=1H
KA
Source mobile top-up credits 104 104 — NA
FEFHEEREDE TER
Potential acquisitions of businesses and assets that 78 — 78— (Note i)

are complementary to the Group's business and operations,

or forming strategic alliance with value chain partners

ETEARENEBEREEVKERNFHREE — (i)
FEEEREYHRURBYBNEBREENE
Wi
General working capital 52 52 — NA
_ ﬂ'LLéi K@Fﬁ
520 398 122
‘l OO NNK Group Limited
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Notes:
0) The figures in the table are approximate figures.

(i) The expected timeline for utilising the remaining proceeds is based on the best estimation of
the future market conditions made by the Group. It will be subject to change based on the

current and future development of market conditions.

(i) As of the date of this report, the Group had not identified, committed to or entered into
negotiations with any acquisition targets for the use of net proceeds from the global offering,

hence the Group has no specific expected timeframe for fully utilising such proceeds.

The unutilised portion of the net proceeds were deposited in reputable banks in Hong

Kong.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

There has been no change of the Independent Auditor in the past three years.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 have
been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which will retire, and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the

Company is to be proposed at the AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
Huang Junmou

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
NVRE T

Deloitte.

To the Shareholders of NNK Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NNK Group Limited (the
“Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 109 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

‘l 02 NNK Group Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Existence of inventories

We identified the existence of inventories as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the balance to the consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with the virtual

nature of inventories.

The carrying amount of inventories amounted to approximately RMBI5 million is carried

in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the existence of inventories included:

D) Involving our internal information technology specialists to evaluate the design and
effectiveness of general computer controls and application controls of the 007ka

Top-up Platform (the “System");

) Involving our internal information technology specialists to check the stock
movement of virtual prepaid mobile top-ups cards recorded in the System to
be matched with the inventory balances recorded in ledger as at the end of the

reporting period; and

i) Involving our internal information technology specialists to verify the acquisition
record before year end and subsequent usage record after year end of the same
virtual pre-paid mobile top-up cards in the System, on a sample basis, to ensure

their existence as at year end.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYREERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

2. Revenue recognition on mobile top-up service
During the year, the majority of the Group's revenue was contributed from the top-up
service. We identified the revenue recognition on mobile top-up service as a key audit

matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial statements. The revenue was

approximately RMB82 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Once a top-up request from an individual mobile was placed, the request would be
automatically transferred from the channels of customer to the System.

Al the top-up transactions were generated and recorded in the System automatically.
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition included:

D) Evaluating the effectiveness of internal controls over the revenue recognition

process in respect of top-up service and the System;

i) Confirming with the major channels of customer of the Group for the transaction

amounts of top-up service;

iy Involving our intemal information technology specialists in testing the validity and
accuracy of the sales orders received by the Group recognised in the System and

its authentication process on security validation check; and

V) Involving our interal information technology specialists to perform various data

analysis on the transaction pattern.

‘l 04 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

BRETEE#E)
2 FRIBRERBRSER

FR - BEREABIREREFZTER
B ATRAFHAZTERG RS ER S

MR REARRESH AR
“BEFSAST

ERERR Fket

B REREIHNERNEEER ML -

A IETEEBRESZENSN

ATEBREERNEFBHE -

) HEEBRELESWRGER BN
EHIRRBCETTRHE

iy HEBRERBXSEEE BEE

i)
Ht

g%ﬁ E TTEE oS
iy FRATABEERRMERARZRA
R BEXEEEENHEEITENBR

HEREREUA R T 2REREHNRER
ERN

V) BRATABEERMEREIHEA
ETZRBENT ©



Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYREERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

‘l 06 NNK Group Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYREERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is

Cheung, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GREsEREMEEHKRER

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

2020 2019
—BCRE _TNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Fier AR¥ETRT ARETR
Revenue Wi 6 81,742 49,827
Less: Tax surcharge L DI (513) (53)
Cost of revenue WE AR (18,228) (20,129)
Gross profit EH 63,001 29,645
Other income and expenses H A R 8 7,520 6,796
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRIHERX (6,338) (6,795)
Administrative expenses TR (25,665) (20,772)
Research and development expenses e (7,075) (6,649)
Finance costs BT 9 (1,224) (1,552)
Profit before tax BRI A& 7 10 30,219 673
Income tax expense PSR N (6) (8)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FRRMNREE KA 30,213 665
Total comprehensive income attributable to AREHER ARG ZEE
owners of the Company Fak] 30,213 665
Eamings per share FREF 14
— Basic (RMB cents) —EX(AEES) 7.28 0.16
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SmEPBRRR

At 3] December 2020
R-FZFFZf=1—H

2020 2019
—BCBRF —TNF
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB'000
BisE AR®TR ARETL
Non-current assets FREEE

Property, plant and equipment ER S |5 1,490 1,543
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 16 1,905 2,950
Rental deposits HE®Ze 185 185
Deferred tax assets REFIEEE 25 1,546 600
5,126 5278

Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 |7 14,799 22,008
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 18 188,976 105910
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERFIE - ke KEMEKRIE 19 38,183 29,527
Tax recoverables AU EIFIR 2,307 —
Cash and cash equivalents REFFLEEY 20 103,579 117,329
347,844 274774

Current liabilities nEaE
Trade payables B HENIE 21 18,474 25999
Other payables Hih IR 2 64,336 44,055
Tax liabilities HIEGE 5 8
Lease liabilities HERE 23 1,046 LI
Bank borrowings RITER 24 50,000 20,000
133,861 91,173
Net current assets TEEEFE 213,983 183,601
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 219,109 188,879
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2020
REF-FF+-f=1—-H

2020 2019
S A

Notes RMB’000 RMB' 000
BisE ARETR ARETT
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 1,021 1,950
Deferred tax liabilities B BEE 25 8,882 7936
9,903 9,886
Net assets BEFE 209,206 178,993
Capital and reserves EXRfEE
Share capital R 26 27,221 27221
Reserves & 181,985 151,772
Total equity Y g 209,206 178,993

The consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to |87 were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Huang Junmou,
EEHR
DIRECTOR
EF

Yang Hua,
BE
DIRECTOR
EE

FIOEISTENGANBRREHEFTEN
TR -F-A=THRERRERE X
B NIATRARE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERREK

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

Attributable to owners of the Company
LN 2PN

Capital  Statutory Retained

Share Share
capital premium
BE  RHEE

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR

reserve reserves earnings Total
Xfife LERE REBA )
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARRTR AR®TR ARWTR
(Note i) (Note ii)

(M) (R

At | January 2019 RZZ-NE—A—H 27221 38037 46510 10340 56,220 178,328
Profits and total comprehensive FERHEN R ERREE

income for the year — — — — 665 665
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=1+—-H 27221 38037 46510 10,340 56,885 178993
Profits and total comprehensive ENEF R ERRER

income for the year — — — — 30,213 30213
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF+-A=1+—H 27221 38037 46,510 10,340 87,098 209,206
Notes: BisE
() The amounts of capital reserve mainly include: () EXREBeEIEERE:

(@  anamount of RMB25,510,000 representing the differences between the consideration
received on disposal of the entire equity interests in Shenzhen Shenzhou Tongfu
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Tongfu") and Chengdu Shenzhou Tongfu
Technology Co, Ltd. (“Chengdu Tongfu"), subsidiaries of the Company, to a related
company and the Relevant Shareholders (as defined in note 3), and the carrying
amounts of the net assets of Shenzhou Tongfu and Chengdu Tongfu; and

(b)  an amount of RMB20,680,000 representing the difference between the nominal value
of the share capital issued by the Company and the registered capital of a subsidiary
acquired by the Company upon a corporate reorganisation for the purpose of listing
of the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

(i) As stipulated by the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC"), the PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory reserve fund. The minimum transfer to
statutory reserves is 10% of profit after tax of the PRC subsidiaries according to the PRC
subsidiaries’ statutory financial statements. No appropriation is required if the balance of the
statutory reserves has reached 50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The
statutory reserves can be used to make up losses or for conversion into capital.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-BF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before tax BRI AT 8RR 30219 673
Adjustments for: A
Finance costs BB 1,224 1,552
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREENE 1,191 1,020
Unrealised net exchange loss (gain) AREIINEEE (Waw) F5 824 (442)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRETE 803 859
Loss on written off/disposals of property, plant and equipment s HEME - BERRBER 45 2
Recognition of (reversal of) impairment loss in respect of iR () B SRR
trade receivables HEEE 34 29)
Interest income FEWA (891) (3,090)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital LEEREHRIKERENE 33,449 545
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables B 1452 I8 (45 00) w4 (83,100) 12,428
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables — JE{TFIA « & M AR
I (iﬂu) B (8,656) 20,527
Decrease in trade payables B HRNTIERLD (7,525) (21,789)
Increase (decrease) in other payables HAib R ZIBE M () 20,281 (3,048)
Decrease in inventories FERS 7,209 11592
Decrease in rental deposits MEZRSRHD — 242
Cash (used in) generated from operations & EE (FTR) r5lRe (38,342) 20497
Income tax paid RENIFIEES (2,316) —
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH (A IEREFE (40,658) 20,497
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv_\éiﬁrﬁﬁiii

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

2020 2019
“BEDERE _TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Withdrawal of structured products R EtER 1,572,900 2,752,280
Interest received P HCRILE, 891 3,090
Placement of structured products REABEER (1,572,900)  (2,752,280)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BELEB (795) (69)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment HEWME - BE RREMFHIE — 8
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBHRBREFR 96 3,029
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITREFPIGHIE 50,000 20,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BRFITEN (20,000) (40,000)
Interest paid EAFE (1,224) (1,552)
Repayment of leases liabilities EEREEE (1,140) (909)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEEFE (A RL R 27,636 (22,461)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ReMREFEY ORD) BhnEeE (12,926) 1,065
Cash and cash equivalents at | January R—A—BHOREKREFEY 117,329 115,822
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMERE R E B E (824) 442
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, RTZA=+—H8Re K
represented by bank balances and cash ReZEY  ARTEHRLRE 103,579 117,329
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

NNK Group Limited (the “Company’) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The Company's registered office is located at PO Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY-1104, Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is 5/F, Building F5, TCL International E City, No. 1001
Zhongshan Yuan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activity of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is engaged in

providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”), which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

e MR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

—REH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after | January 2020 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8

BAGHERE I RREEGERESR (BRI X)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BEBMBHRELR L3N (BFTAK)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

BEREMBRELEFN - BEGTERFER LB B BRERRIETHR
(B7TA)

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current period has
had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Impacts of application on Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 for the first time
in the current year. The amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments also
clarify that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole. The application of the amendments in the current

year had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

2.

e MR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

RIESTERUBHRELERN (T F
BMBREER ] NER (&)
AEERHERNEBTEBUBRE
8 (&)

EREBE ERE I RREEBEE
RIS (5] XK) EXHEHZHZE
ASERAFEEREAE LG E
RIZE IR BB G EAFSR (BF]
) BRIARETEANES - &
[ERIBER - RIRIERTE - A
AERHEYEE-—RAEZMBER
ANEIREMEREZTMHREK (R
HEEREERNOVBHER) FHAR
R ABRMEMBEKN] - BFAIATNE
BEARERARRRENHBHRRM
5 EBRERERN SR EAENARA
AHNMELERN - RAFEEAZE
ERTHAKEG AN BERRLELE

FEREEFRAR
2020F 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RETEBUKREER((&F

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) BURREEL ) WER (£)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective EEMENRERNITREETER
R EER

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs AREBWHEREEER T2 EMEE KR

that have been issued but are not yet effective: ERMERET RS BRI BB REE
Al

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments'

BRWBHEERE 175
Amendment to HKFRS 16
BERPBHEERF 165 (BRI X)
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB BHwEERE35 (BITA)
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

RERE K RABRAIERT

S| BB ESR?

BAMBHELEFEN BBGTEE39M - MEEERFE - FER

BERIBRELENETR - BEMBREERFE4K
RERIEREERNF 165 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Joint Venture?
BBMBREEE 0% REBGTER
%285 (BRI K)

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*
Covid- 19t B

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or

REEREBENFRSAE AR ANEELELTE’

Amendments to HKAS |

R RIEALACHEN)

Amendments to HKAS 16
BBGTERE 165 (BFIA)
Amendments to HKAS 37

BB GERIE37 (BATA)
Amendments to HKFRSs
BERIBHEER (BFTAK)

‘l 1 8 NNK Group Limited
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Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

BREDBEARDIGERBARBTEREESR (CT-FF) N
BEAER]

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use?

ME - BE Kkie — BT BRI R FTISHUR

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 20207
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | June 2020.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements in the foreseeable future.

2.

e MR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HEMBHRRNEREE

STATEMENTS

The mobile top-up service provided by the Group is prohibited and restricted from RIEBRPBEZ AR - NEEFTR
foreign investment in the PRC pursuant to the applicable PRC laws and regulations. HOFHEBFTERBETRZEENRE
The Group has adopted a series of contracts with Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang INEIRE - REEDHRWETERL
Hua, Mr. Li Xiangcheng, Mr. Xu Xinhua and Mr. Huang Shaowu (collectively o GESAE  BEMLE  FITEL
referred to as the “Relevant Shareholders"”) (the “Structured Contracts”) and ENEBREE (BHEBRRR])
Shenzhen Niannianka Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen NNK”) to MFY T FEFRBEREEER AT ([F
maintain and exercise the control over the operation of Shenzhen NNK and to YEER)TUN—RIEL ([#HE
obtain all of its entire economic benefits (the “VIE Arrangement”). The Structured MEN])  A@ENRTEESFIIFEFF
Contracts are irrevocable and enable the Group to: TR GIE - WESH 2 IEE

M ((TRNBERRHE]) - BEIEA
AIATHEE - WA E AR E

. exercise effective financial and operational control over Shenzhen NNK; o (TEHFNFFERNERIB KL

R

. exercise equity holders' voting rights of Shenzhen NNK; o TEFIFFRREZEANEK
SHE
. receive substantially all economic returns generated by Shenzhen NNK in o EBFNFEFRELENBRED
consideration for the business support, technical and consulting services KEL R - EAYAREB ARG
provided by the Group; EBIE - B kB AREN®R
B
. obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase the entire equity o REEEEUREBEERIEEFR
interest in Shenzhen NINK from the Relevant Shareholders; and 2 IIRER AR EREAR
K
. obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Shenzhen NNK from the o  ESHEREHFEINFFEREE
Relevant Shareholders as collateral security for all of Shenzhen NNK due IR (ERFIEERE
to the Group and to secure performance of the Relevant Shareholders’ NASERERENERR - I
obligations under the Structured Contracts. BREBRREETNEBILS
KTEEE-

‘l 20 NNK Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

The Company does not have any equity interest in Shenzhen NNK. However, as a
result of the Structured Contracts, the Company has power over Shenzhen NNK;
has rights to variable returns from its involvement with Shenzhen NNK and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over Shenzhen NNK and therefore
is considered to have control over Shenzhen NNK. Consequently, the Company
regards Shenzhen NNK as an indirect subsidiary and consolidated the financial
position and results of Shenzhen NNK in the consolidated financial statements of

the Group during both years.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules")

and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set

out in below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.

e MR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope in HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payments, leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16
Leases ("HKFRS [6"), and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in

use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

e MR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020

HFE-E-FF+-f=f—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries

1o bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance

obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the distinct good or service.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the
Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (ie. the Group is a principal) or
to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the

Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before that

good or service is transferred to a customer.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the
mobile top-up service by the PRC telecommunication companies. In this case,
the Group does not control the mobile top-up credits provided by the PRC
telecommunication companies before mobile top-up service is transferred to the
mobile subscribers. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of mobile top-up service income entitled from the mobile subscribers,
net of cost of mobile top-up credits sourced from the PRC telecommunication
companies or other vendors. Mobile top-up service income is recognised when the
PRC telecommunication companies completed the mobile top-up service for the

mobile subscribers.

Leases
Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the

use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial application or
arising from business combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless

the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of various
staff quarters that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases

are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4, EBEEEHEEK#E)

Leases (continued) HE (E)

The Group as a lessee (continued) FEEEBEBEA (E)

Right-of-use assets EAREE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: ERREEZKAESE

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; o HHEBBVHRITEZER

«  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any o AR ATELERAE
lease incentives received; SN BRERTSEREER

B
+  anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Group; and s FEEEAMEIMONBEEX
N

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and o AKREBRKBREBBRABEE -
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located or EREEMRNESBHEBEE
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and MEEHEZIEHNIEHEBTE
conditions of the lease. SKZIRREREE & 2 AT ©

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and FREEEEKAGE - AT RS

impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. FERREBETHEERE ERE

a8 TIARE -
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its FREEERERE M AT
estimated useful life and the lease term. RAHE (VARG & R2E) WEHRITE -

SERGAMBARKRAREHEE
IIREFER -

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the consolidated

Bt

statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits AIREMEES

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BENARERERE IIRERBIISR

and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition LEBEIFEMTAAR  WHE

are considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use PNEES - RURERFH AT ES

assets. BRRERIMEENR R AEAEE
BB ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental

borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease

incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured

using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value

guarantees,

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to

exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the

Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion

and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use

one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group
remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective

date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease

component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2020

HFE-E-FF+-f=f—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development activities which is not eligible for
capitalisation is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Retirement benefit costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefits scheme which is classified as
defined contribution plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and

salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit/loss before tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020

HFE-E-FF+-f=f—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting

in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to

income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property

assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted

for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020

HFE-E-FF+-f=f—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant cash generating units when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group

of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating

unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or
a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all costs necessary to

make the sale,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020

HFE-E-FF+-f=f—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("HKFRS
I5"). Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial

assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to

collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS

3 Business Combinations applies.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting

period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (‘ECL")
model on financial assets (including trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances), which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit

risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, |2-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the industry default rates quoted by a credit agent, adjusted
for any factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the

forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on

these assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances and/or

collectively with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to

[2m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of

whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;
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for the year ended 31 December 2020
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

0

140

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit spread and the credit default swap

prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes

that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when

contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has

reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to

identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises

them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying

significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

NNK Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For interal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the

Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons

relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

)

142

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that

is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered on a collective
basis taking into consideration internal credit rating information and forward

looking information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the following

characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the

constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case

interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment is recognised

through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and bank borrowings are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

NNK Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note
4, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the critical judgement that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group assesses its business relationships with users of the mobile top-up
service and suppliers of mobile top-up credits and determines that the Group is
providing the mobile top-up service by facilitating transactions between the PRC
telecommunication companies and mobile subscribers, and accordingly reports

revenue derived from such services on net basis.

In determining whether the revenue from mobile top-up service shall be recorded
on net basis or gross basis, the Group has made reference to indicators and
requirements stated in HKFRS 15. Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or an agent requires judgment and consideration of all relevant facts and
circumstances, and the Group considers itself as having an agency relationship with
the PRC telecommunication companies by assessing features that are arising from

its operation and contractual agreements.

e MR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

ERE A

RN 4Pt 00 R R B 5K
B - ARRIESAREELE A RE
SEBWEE R ARREEFDHE -
fhat R o % Fhat RERRR IR
BBEER I AMRE SEENERM
R - BIRERABRINZFMET

fhat RABERR O ERERT © HHE
HAEE BRI B BB ARG H
B AERET RN ZBRAER © WA
BIERTHERRRKBEGERTE - A
NMERTHAR] B R R R RERR, o

WTAARAEFREAAEEGHR
FEFEL L6 A SRR
BEREAVENER AN -

ZEAMBREANZE
AEEEFHEERTFRAETERER
FPEFHRAERESRRER  ANE
BEE  YREAKERBRETHRE
EAREFRAP ZENZFMEEHT
HEBRRERS AN FEEEE R
REZERBEHUE -

RETEFHAETERGUARS ZF
BEAESEREREARR - AEED S
B2 EEEMBRELENSE |55
ERRAT - BEARERENUZRTA
IREAFNTER - FEHMEIEE
FERBERELAE N EE - MBRT
EREZERSOBEELNEH - A
SERREAGATEEERARERE
BAIR -

FEREEFRAR
2020F 145
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REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

2020 2019
—g-8F -—TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETE

Type of service AR5 2 Bl

Mobile top-up service FHRFEBRERE 80,967 49,163

Mobile data usage top-up service FRRERERS 642 559

Others it 133 105
81,742 49,827

The Group provides the mobile top-up and mobile data usage top-up service
by facilitating transactions between the PRC telecommunication companies and
mobile subscribers, through the channels of financial institutions and other channels.

Accordingly, the Group recognises revenue derived from such services on net basis.

Mobile top-up service income is entitled from the mobile subscribers, net of cost
of mobile top-up credits sourced from the PRC telecommunication companies or

other vendors.

Mobile top-up service income is recognised when the PRC telecommunication
companies completed the mobile top-up service for the mobile subscribers, being
at the point of time when the mobile subscribers have the ability to direct the use

of the service and obtain the benefit of the service.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors and the chief operating decision makers (the
“CODMEs") in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their

performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The CODMs review the Group's financial performance as a whole, which is
generated from the provision of mobile top-up service, mobile data usage top-
up service and other top-up service by the Group to customers and determined
in accordance with the Group's accounting policies, for performance assessment.

Therefore, no separate segment information is prepared by the Group.

Geographical information
All of the Group's revenue is derived from customers in the PRC and assets are
principally located in the PRC. Therefore, no geographical segment information is

presented.
Information about major customers
There was no revenue from individual customers of the Group contributing over

10% of the total revenue of the Group during both vears.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
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2020 2019
—g-BEF -—TN%
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTE
Interest income FEMA
— from structured products (Note a) — REHEBNER (MTa) 546 2,531
— from bank deposits — RERITER 345 559
Government subsidy (Note b) BT aL (Fifstp) 2,826 992
(Recognition of) reversal of impairment loss in respect of ~ BB ZEWMFIBEEHREEFEREAT
trade receivables under expected credit loss model (HER) BEMREESE (34) 29
Net foreign exchange (loss) gains SN (B398 ) e 58 (729) 406
Loss on written off/disposals of property, MsHHEWME - WERRENEE
plant and equipment (45) (2)
Income on additional credit for the input value added tax ~ ¥ETEIZ{ER ([JEER]) &
("VAT") (Note c) FIME R (Hi3Ec) 4,944 2,162
Others Hoth (333) 119
7,520 6,796
FERERARAR

2020F

147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

8.

9.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES (continued) 8. EHiWARREX(#)
Notes: BisE
(@)  During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group entered into @) BEZ-_ZFR-_ZT-NF+=A
principal and return unprotected-structured products with banks in the PRC that were =+—H _U: FE Z]K E@ R E%
denominated in RMB and without fixed maturity period. Interest of the structured RFTRER S ERIFRER EEM
products varied depending on the performance and retum of underlying investments Em(RARENE  EETEDEHH
managed by the banks. The structured products were classified as financial assets at ) o ERUEERNNSETRITH
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. All the structured products were EEMBRENRARBRME - 4
purchased and redeemed during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. BUHERRITSERE D FARD
@Eﬂ\?ﬁﬁﬁ'\lépﬂﬁﬁ o B4 %’I‘E
EmPREE_Z_TFR-FT-N
FHZRA=+-RALFEBERE
@ o
(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the relevant government authority b)) HEZ_TFF_HA=t+—HI
granted one-off subsidy to the Group amounting to RMB2,826,000 (2019: FE BHEBNERRAEEITE
RMB992,000) in relation to the Group's industry related funding scheme. The HANETERASEREAR
government subsidy was recognised in the profit or loss in the year in which they #2,826000T (ZE—NF : ARK
became receivable. 992,0007T) B — R HEEE o BURHEEL
PHRE AT BV R AR BB BERR o
(0) On 21 March 2019, the PRC tax authority has published 2019 Bulletin 39 with (© *hﬁzﬂ —+—8 - RERH
effective period from | April 2019 to 31 December 2021 which states that additional BHEBEG —_E—NEE9E NS
10% of input VAT would be granted to the qualified general VAT payer to offset (Exﬁzﬂﬁ E-Z ﬂi@ﬁ] HEZ
VAT payables. —F+ZA=+—R) LK
r& &R —RIBERBTAR TR
[0%HEIRIRER - AR (E
FINANCE COSTS 9. HMEMA
2020 2019
—g=%¥5 -TAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERFLE 1,077 1,379
Interest on lease liabilities MEREBENE 147 173
1,224 1,552
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e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRB{ATEF
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: BREEAT & A TS HIBIA T R IBE G

2020 2019
—g-8F -—TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETE

Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) E=Me (MaF12) 3,123 3,171
Salaries and other benefits, excluding those of directors ~ TE& R EMBEHN (TEEEER) 14,523 12,588
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, BB EIER (P BEESEN)

excluding those of directors 819 ,842
Total staff costs BTRAMRER 18,465 17,601
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRETE 803 859
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENE 191 1,020
Auditor's remuneration e &
— Audit services — FE:H RS 1,886 652
— Non-audit services — IEERT IR 422 563
Short-term lease expenses IR ER — 543
INCOME TAX EXPENSE . FriEHiBx

2020 2019

—g-F T NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFR  ARETT

Current tax: ENEATRIE
—PRC Enterprise Income Tax — PRBEMER 6 8
Deferred tax (Note 25) EAER A (FTEE25) — —
6 8
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is exempted from ARAIRFSESTMACITERR
income tax. BANFTISHL ©
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REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Hong Kong

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill"") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first Hong
Kong Dollar (“HK$") 2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue

to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The applicable tax rate of the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong is 6.5%.
No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as no assessable profit was generated in Hong Kong for both

years.

The PRC
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulations of the PRC EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

In January 2016, Daily Charge Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (“Daily Charge SZ"),
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise of the Company, was accredited as a software
enterprise by the Shenzhen Software Industry Association, and therefore could
enjoy an income tax exemption for two years starting from its first profit-making
year and a 50% tax reduction to an income tax rate of 12.5% for the subsequent
three years. For the year ended 31 December 2019, Daily Charge SZ generated
no assessable profit and for the year ended 31 December 2020, Daily Charge SZ's

assessable profit was absorbed by unrecognised tax loss in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The PRC (continued)

As a small-size and low-profit enterprise under the PRC EIT Law, Shenzhen Qianhai
Yixing Network Technology Co, Ltd* (Y| l/8 &= EABA R AR A ), a PRC
subsidiary of the Company, was entitled to 20% preferential tax rate and only 25%
of the taxable profits is subject to the PRC EIT Law, with effective period from |
January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

8B (&)

HE (&)

AN BB E R ARG = EABR
REEBR AR ATECEMBRATH
INEUBRF 2 - ZH20%MEBRIE -
{E25% BRI E R B R B TS T
ENR AR - NFE—-A—H
E_Z_—H+-A=+—H-

FARERX A BN 2R BE R
o2 ERERPHOBRTANERN -

—

2020 2019

—BIRF _TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Profit before tax BRI AT A 30,219 673
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% BN RS % TEHTIE 7,555 168
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax purpose BRI 0k 2,064 1374
Tax benefits (Note) HBEE () (1,327) (1281)

Tax effect of tax relief or concessionary tax rate BB N —KPEH B AR

granted to a PRC subsidiary EREENENNETE (22) —
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERVEE BB E - 742
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised A BRI RERTIBERE (8,264) (995)
Income tax expense for the year FARMEHRX 6 8

Note:

Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC, additional 75% of the qualified
research and development costs are allowed to claim as PRC income tax credits. Such PRC
income tax credits are accounted for deduction from current income tax expenses when

relevant conditions are fulfilled.

* English name is for identification purpose only

GEE

RIEPBAERRGRR LR - A ERIE
PXANEVBBSNT 5% A] FRER R B PTG BB © 2%
Eep B PR IS R S IR IR P AR
EEHAREHASINS

* BNAREHREHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

2.

192

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 2. EXE - FETHAERESNH
€
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to Rig@EA TR AR A FHER AT E
the applicable Listing Rules and the CO, is as follows: FRESRTETHAEBNH SO :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
IR BRER
e Ht2 8 FHEIfERK &5t
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®BTR AR%¥®TR AR®BTR AR%ETx
For the year ended BE-2-2F
31 December 2020 TZA=1t—HILEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Huang Junmou BEEEE 133 1,010 12 [,155
Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer) 1538 E (B EHITTE) 133 1,000 37 1,170
Non-executive directors: FMITES
Mr. Yu Zida WFERE 133 — — 133
Mr. Li Xiangcheng FEREE 133 — — 133
Mr. Xu Xinhua AEESRE 133 — — 133
Independent non-executive directors: B FFHITES
Mr. Lin Zhangxi WEHKE 133 — — 133
Mr. Qian Haomin BESAL 133 — — 133
Ms. Zhao Jinlin HE ML 133 = = 133
1,064 2,010 49 3,123
NNK Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 2. BEE -  FETBRAERESENH

(continued) cAC D)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
I&R RRET
itk H A2 R IR A&t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

For the year ended BE-_ZT-—NEF

31 December 2019 TZA=T-HIEFE
Executive directors: BITES
Mr. Huang Junmou BEREE 132 1011 34 1177
Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer) 153504 (BEHITE) 132 1,001 69 1,202
Non-executive directors: FEHITES -
Mr. Yu Zida WFELE 132 — — 132
Mr. Li Xiangcheng FEMRE 132 — — 132
Mr. Xu Xinhua TEELE 132 — — 132

Independent non-executive directors:  BI FFHITES

Mr. Lin Zhangxi Ve 132 — — 132
Mr. Qian Haomin BRELE 132 — — 132
Ms. Zhao Jinlin HEEMZL 132 — — 132

1,056 2012 103 3,171
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

[2. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12.
(continued)
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included two
directors (2019: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set out above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2019: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

Company are as follows:

EE FETRAEBRESHH
& (&)
AEERFALERSFMER B2
REZR(CTNF 28EF) EFH
RN X - LIFRARBESER
TETBRABMBRTIR (ZT—NF:
3%) k= HrE B N F ARF BRI
T~

2020 2019
—g-®F -—TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETL

Salaries and allowances TE N2 2,596 1,958
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFFTEI 30 94 [55
2,690 2,113

The number of the highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company is as belows:

WHRARTEZRTETRABNR

BEHHESABNT
2020 2019
—B-BE -TNF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAR BEAH

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T £ 1,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7TE 1,500,000/ 7T

I 2
2 |

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors, chief executive of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors and the chief executive of the Company has waived any

emoluments during both years.

‘l 54 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS 13.
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the Company

during 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting

period (2019: nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE 14.
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of

the Company is based on the following data:

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

35
ANERER S TFRLBRRE
IRESEFRERE - BREHRRE
BERERE (Z2—NF £) -

BRER
RATEE NELERER R ERT
ToRH L TRIEHE -

2020 2019
—g-®F -—TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETL

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings MEREREERT
per share: & &8 :
— Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company — AN B A AJE(L & A& H

30,213 665

Number of shares

RZEE
2020 2019
ZEIRE _TNF
’000 '000
TR TR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for MERERREERT
the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share & B @R IE T 415,000 415,000

No diluted eamings per share is presented for both years as there was no potential

ordinary share in issue.

AR EEE D HITE R - R mE
FEARZHERHERT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

I15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

I5. ¥% - BERRE

Computer
Leasehold Motor and office
improvement vehicles equipment Total
L
HEYEEE AE RBARE =)
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT AR¥Tr AR¥ETRT AR®ET:x
COST R AR
At | January 2019 RZE-NF—H—H 396 2362 12,068 14,826
Additions B 47 — 22 69
Disposals HE — — (230) (230)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=-A=+—H 443 2362 11,860 14,665
Additions NE 66 — 729 795
Write-off ke — — (94) (94)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+-A=+—H 509 2362 12,495 15,366
DEPRECIATION e
At | January 2019 RZZE-hE—A—H 143 1,192 11,148 12,483
Provided for the year FARE 73 391 395 859
Eliminated on disposals A E R ¥ — - (220) (220)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=+—H 216 1,583 11323 13,122
Provided for the year FARE 76 376 35 803
Eliminated on write-off TARUBR B T 85 — - (49) (49)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZEF+-_F=+—H 292 1,959 11,625 13,876
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+-A=+—H 217 403 870 1,490
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=+—H 227 779 537 1,543

NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) I5. Y% BERZEZE)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- FuiE - BERREER NAEA
line basis over the useful lives as follows: FHNIREGEEETINE -

Leasehold improvement Shorter of respective lease term or 5 years

MEMREE ARESESF UABREERE)

Motor vehicles 5 years

T 5

Computer and office equipment 3to 5 years

B WE N 3ESE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS l6. EAREE

Land and buildings

in the PRC
HER L
5T £2
RMB’ 000
ARBT T
At | January 2020 RZEZZEF—H—H
Carrying amount AREE 2,950
At 3| December 2020 R-Z-ZFE+-A=+—H
Carrying amount AREE 1,905
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z-FF+-_A=1+—HIFE
Depreciation charge FEXH 1,191
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-NEF+-A=+—HLFE
Depreciation charge mEXH 1,020

FEREEFRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

l6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) l6. EFRAEEE#)

Year ended Year ended

31 December 3| December

2020 2019
Bz Bz
—BCRF T NF
+=A +T=A
=t-B =t—A
tEE EFE

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT  ARBTT

Expense relating to short-term leases i MHERENRAX - 543

Total cash outflow for leases MENREMHERE 1,287 1,625

Additions to right-of-use assets RERAEEE 146 470
For both years, the Group leases land and buildings for its operations. Lease PREFE  AEEHETHRIEFTH
contracts are entered into for fixed term of | year to 4 years. Lease terms are 1B - HEAHNIR I FRAFHNETH
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and BRETS. - MEKFURER A %R - B

conditions. BE BRI G ARM
17. INVENTORIES 7. F&

2020 2019

—BIRF _TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Pre-paid mobile top-up credits ENFREERESE 14,799 22,008
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

18. BZEWRE

2020 2019

—BCRF —_TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETRT ARETT

Trade receivables B S REWRIE 189,122 106,022
Less: allowance of credit losses B EEEEEE (146) (112)
Total trade receivables Z SN IaEE 188,976 105910

As at | January 2019, trade receivables from contracts with customers amounted

to RMBI18,309,000.

Trade receivables mainly represent receivables from financial institutions in relation
to the mobile top-up service which the settlement period is normally within | day
from transaction date. Due to deepening cooperation with major PRC banks for
their promotion activities, the Group has granted credit period of 30 to 45 days
for those trade receivables based on the invoice date. For certain channels of
customers, the credit period was about 30 to 60 days granted by the Group based

on the invoice date. The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit
losses presented based on the date of service provided and revenue recognised, at

the end of each reporting period:

R-ZFE-AF—A—R ZEEFH
BHNEENEIRUFERARE
118,309,0007T ©

HORKRETERERTFREERE
g MEEKERMTIE - SEHB
FTRARHABIAN - AR ABEREY
MEBEREEERITAE - AEBERZ
ZEFRYGIRR TERBERI30545
ROERY - HRETEFPEE K%
BETEREZHN0E60KHER
By o REBWEBZSHEBRIEEME
4 o

THARERERRRIEMRHERE R
R R R 25 M E 5 RUMRE
(R EEERRM) RERE D -

2020 2019

ZEZRE _TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARETR

0to 30 days 0&30K 186,993 98,429
31 to 60 days 3IE60K 1,105 2312
Over 60 days 60K £ 878 5,169
188,976 105910
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade receivables balance were
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB434,000 (2019: RMB4,924,000)

which are past due as at the reporting date.

Based on the Group's assessment of historical credit loss experience of these
debtors, including all available forward-looking information and expected
settlements, the Group does not consider default has occurred despite the
contractual payments are overdue more than 90 days due to these customers are
mainly country-wise banks with strong financial positions. However, the Group
has provided in full for trade receivables overdue more than 180 days (2019: the
Group has provided in full for trade receivables overdue more than 180 days
except for a debtor with carrying amount of RMB3,784,000), because based on
historical experience, such receivables are generally not recoverable, unless the

Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's trade receivables balance was
a debtor with carrying amount of RMB3,784,000 which was past due 80 days
or more and was under negotiation. The debtor is a country-wise bank with
strong financial position and has continuous business cooperation with the Group
with no historical default or past-due receivables. As at 31 December 2019, the
management of the Group considered the trade receivable from such debtor
amounting to RMB3,784,000 was recoverable. Such amount was settled in full

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in Note 28.

‘l 60 NNK Group Limited

Annual Report 2020

18. EZRBURIE#E)

R-ZE-_TF+-_A=+—-8 R
REAHEANNEEELEAA
R#¥434000L (ZE—NEF : ARK
4,924,0007T) W EUR S GT AR EEE
SREWGIAR

ERAEEHZSREHEABTERELX
BT - BIERE A ERATIEEE
HEREREERER  FAEERRBES
TN AEIORIAL - BERZE
EFTERAGRBHMBEIAN 2EN
BAT - WASEHEELD - A BRR
BRELER  BHERI0RNESRE
WRIE— R AR - AR S e
iR I180KME F BB IEH 2 8
#(ZZ2—NF : FEERBHERI80
REE HREWRIAEL 2 88 A& - 1R
HEEA AR 3,784,000 0 K08 U BR TR Bk
) REREESEEEANEESR
KR &FEHA - BIVERIR ©

R-ZE-NE+-A=1+—0 &8
B HRKFIBARTRERAERA
R #3,784,000 7T H) FE UL BR 50 - B0 EA 180
RIA ERADIEAH P - ZEBAR—
REIZKIRIT » BBIRAR Y - EAEE
ERENEBEE BRELENIEH
EYH - RZFE-NEF+A=+—
B ARENERERRBZEBAN
B 5 FEWGRIE AR 3,784,000 7T & AT 4
Blf) c ZRBERBE_T-_ZTF+=
A=+—HEFEREELEE -

BRE DRAGIRR ARG F B H M
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20.

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. FARRIE - ZERHEMEKRFIE
2020 2019
—ECEE —ENHF
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETRT ARETT
Prepayments for mobile top-up credit FREBRESHEANE 35313 25,802
VAT recoverable AT EIEE T 1,914 2419
Other prepayments and deposits and other receivables HATER A Rz KA M BN RIE 956 1,306
38,183 29,527

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. RERFSEEY

The Group's cash and cash equivalents carry interests at prevailing market rates
which range from 0.01% to 2.60% (2019: 0.01% to 2.60%) per annum as at 3|
December 2020.

TRADE PAYABLES 21.

The Group is normally granted credit terms of about 90 days. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are within the

credit timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the date of

service provided, at the end of respective reporting periods:

RZZZZF+-A=+—H ' £5%HE
MReRBEEEMENNEF0.01%
£2.60%(ZF—NF : 0.01%F260%)
HBRITIISFRET R o

BEZENFR
AEEBTERNOKRNERAE - A%
EHETH SRR EIEBER - ARRAE
ENFETSRBIERR

AT AREREARRERMRE A E
HZ2FINE Z N TR RER DT -

2020 2019
—g-®F —TAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETI

0 to 90 days 0290k 6,460 3723
91 to 180 days 91 E 180K 1,018 [,250
181 to 360 days 181 360K 10,996 21,026

18,474 25999
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-F-FE At —AUFE
22. OTHER PAYABLES 22. HitbEAFIR
2020 2019
—BIRF T NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%ETR
Receipts in advance T FIA 55,785 40,564
Accrued salaries fEstE& 4231 2,002
Other tax payables Hip R THIE 207 103
Payable for audit fee JERTELTER 949 86
Others 2t 3,164 525
64,336 44,055
23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HERE
2020 2019
_ 7 —= ﬂi :%@—j‘hﬂi
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ARETT
Lease liabilities payable: EAEERE:
Within one year —FR 1,046 [T
Within a period of more than one year but not more than &H—F LA - (B NEBBEME
two vears 1,021 929
Within a period of more than two years but not more than &ERF LA L - EFEBRE
five years — 1,021
2,067 3,061
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months shown &, : SI{ERBIBEMNRTZEAA
under current liabilities BB E R FIE 1,046 [T
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under  FI{EIERBI B EMR+ @A %
non-current liabilities I EEERRIR 1,021 1,950
The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 5.9% (2019: 59%). AR EEENEEERMEAESI%
(Z2— 15 : 59%) °
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANK BORROWINGS 24.

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

2020 2019
—EZEF —ETNEF

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETRT ARETT

Unsecured, repayable within one year and shown under I - R—FRAEER
current liabilities NRE R EATIR

50,000 20,000

The Group's unsecured bank borrowings were denominated in RMB. All the

Group's bank borrowings carried interest rates (per annum) ranging as below:

AR B IE AT I A R 5
- ARG FARITERE N EBE
m -

2020 2019

—g-®F -—TNE

Fixed rate bank borrowings Bl EFIRBITER 5.20% —

Floating rate bank borrowings FENIRBITRN — 590%
DEFERRED TAXATION 25. EEEBIE

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

U RRERBHE B 8 BT RIBE

purposes: BT
2020 2019
—2-F —T-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Deferred tax assets RUEHIBEE (1,546) (600)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 8,882 7936
7,336 7,336
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 25. EIETE (£)
The following are the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements T ARE R MBEFEERRNELT
thereon during the current and prior years: HIERE(BE) hHES !
Taxable
Allowance of  management
credit losses fee income
of Shenzhen of Daily
NNK Charge SZ Tax losses Total
RIEEF  XXFRYI
FEER HFERRBE
BE EZBERA BEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR
(Note)
(B =E)
At | January 2019 and RZZE-hE—HA—BRK
31 December 2019 —NE+-A=1+—8 (600) 7936 — 7336
Charge (credit) for the year FARX (ER) 600 1,344 (1,944) —
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF+=-A=+—H — 92280 (1,944) 7336
Note: Amount represented the tax effect of RMB37,120,000 management fee to pay by M3 - ZeBABE_E—RE+-_A=1
Shenzhen NNK and to receive by Daily Charge SZ for the year ended 31 December —BIEFE *Eé BRI aEREY
2015 under the VIE Arrangement. B R EFEREZ N RRRIARI
FEUER M E IR B AR 37,120,000
MM E -
164 NNK Group Limited
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB9,191,000 (2019: RMB42,247,000) available for offset against future profits.

As at 31 December 2020, a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of RMB7,776,000 of such losses and no deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining RMB 1,415,000 due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in the RMB1,944,000 deferred tax asset, RMB398,000 is
recognised in respect of RMBI,592,000 unused tax loss of Daily Charge SZ and
presented as net amount with the deferred tax liability arising from its taxable

management fee income.

As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax assets was recognised in respect of tax

losses RMB42,247,000 due to unpredictability of future profit steams.

Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMBI,415,000 (2019:
RMB42,247,000) that with expiry dates as disclosed in the following table.

25.

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

EREBIE (&)

RBEHR  AEEERBARBEER
AR®9,191000T (ZE—NF : AR
#42,247,0007T) AT AR 85 R 2R A

N—E-_TE+-_A=+—0 " %
BB ARM7,776 0000 R —BIELH
HEE - BRI A RORE A AT 18
A SEFEA T AR 14150007CH
RIEETRIBEE - AR 194400070
ERIEEEF - ARE398,0007T 05k
RAFRAINNKRBAREBEARE
1,592,000 THERR + WA HERTERE

RZE-NF+ZA=1+—H0 Bk
RoaFIZRS T FRAME - WEFBIE
BB ARKE42,247 000 T HEREL R 1B
BEE

AERARBEETEISHARER T
KHOEBBARE415000T (ZE—A
F 0 NEBE422470007T) ©

2020 2019
—g-®F -—TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETE

2022 —E-F — 12,290
2023 —ERC-=F 1,415 27,964
2024 —ER-F — 1993

1,415 42,247
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 25. IEEBIE (&)
Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in BIETPECEMERHE B2 \&F
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards. —H—Bi SR EMEQR R
As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of taxable temporary differences FEIROEEEHWENE - R=-E—
associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax EFE+_A=1+—H " HBRAREXD
liabilities have not been recognised amounted to RMBI175,584,000 (31 December REBFEENEER TS =5a5E (1
2019: RMB139,032,000). No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect ERHEBARCRIBAEEGE) AARE
of these temporary differences because the Group is in a position to control the 175,584,0007c (ZE—NEFE+=-A=+
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such —H : AR®139,032,0007T) ° AL
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. Bt TRt ZENERE B
EZ%%%EEJ ERERANE R AKED -
WA B2 E R RERRENRARE
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. HQZF
The share capital at 31 December 2020 and 2019 represented the share capital of RZE_TFEN_F-AF+_A=1+
the Company. — B RRARIEARR AR -
Details of movements of authorised and issued capital of the Company are as BEARRRETEREBETRANE S
follows: EEFIMT
Number of Issued and fully paid share capital
authorised Number of ERTRBMERE
shares issued shares uss$ RMB’000
EERGBE ERTROHA Xt AR%TRn
Asat | January 2019, 3| December 2019, R=F—AF—A—H
| January 2020 and 31 December 2020 “Z-NE+ZR=T—H
“ECEE-A-AR
g:?i‘l‘ A=1+—H
— Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each %0.01 TR L A% 2,000,000,000 415,000,000 4,150,000 27221
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27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to owners through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes bank
borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to the owners

of the Company, comprising share capital, retained earnings and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from time to time.
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital and will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of

dividends, the issue of new shares, new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

27. BEXRRKMER

FEBERLASURREROR AL
PR EERFRE - FETES
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%*ZWK%m$®ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
AFBBABH - A F ML RFR 5L
EE—BRETE -

AR ENEARRE R &R FRAN -
RBIRITER  HRRERAE E%&
ARAEAANEEER (BEEA - R
BENREMEHE) -

AEEEEE MRS EAGERE - A%
E%Eiﬁé)ﬁ$u&%i‘%‘éﬁﬁmﬁ’qﬂ

 WARE BRI AR - BITHRR D -
%ﬁfﬂ“ﬂa@ﬁﬁfﬂ‘“ﬁﬂ%ﬁ]ﬁ% gE
NG

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. &@IA
a.  Categories of financial instruments a. SBIAER
2020 2019
—BCBE —TNEF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETIT
Financial assets LREE
Amortised cost BEGER AR 293,400 224,664
Financial liabilities A=
Amortised cost B ER R 76,818 49,387
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for the year ended 31 December 2020
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28.

168

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other
payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risks (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk related primarily to certain
bank balances that are denominated in HK$ and US$. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated

monetary assets at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

28. €W IA(E)

b.

BEREREEBERBER
$$EW$£$@IEﬁ%E%
JEW IR ~ & K H b & WK
ﬁ~ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%‘ﬁ%%
FRIE - AR IR « RITHE
REHERE - ZZFERIAN
BNk
TRIAFHENRRBETSRE
’ﬂf%ﬂ s RN R R
EREE R o flRiE
EZ%%ER%&E@H&ﬁﬁ%&E@TTSZ o BIR
EERRERZEFRR - ARR
KB B8 ROt SREUE 2 1 i

g aray
HZE

a=

R T
gl
AEEEGTRENETLET

ﬁ@% = FHRITHSR B R INE

B o K5 B3R B N A SN
ﬂ#ﬁﬁ°%ﬁ B EE R
P B N 1 R B KNS L
B (N E)

AEEREREHRAINEFE
MEBEENREEDT

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-H
2020 2019
ZBEZRE _TNF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR%ETR

Monetary assets EKEE

HKS BT 10,180 17,708
US$ xET 40 44
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group exposes foreign currency risk on fluctuation of HK$ and US$
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. The following table
details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2019: 5%) increase and decrease in
RMB against HK$ or US$ by 5% (2019: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used which
represents the management's assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% (2019: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year
where RMB weakened 5% (2019: 5%) against HK$ or US$. For a 5% (2019:
5%) strengthening of RMB against HK$ or US$, there would be an equal and

opposite impact in the profit or loss.

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

28. ®@MIA (&)

b.

F¥EREEREREE (&)
g ()

BRI (&)

BREDH
BE_Z_TER-_T-NEF+

:EE+—H¢¢Ev$%I
HER BT RETRE M INE R
%o TRIAMASEHARKY
ATEETHBEREZE%(ZF
—NF : 5%) MEURE o FTRK
5% (ZZT—NEF : 5%) HEEKE
EEEHINEEENIEEEE
BMETE - MBRESMERTEN
SNEEETEMREREERIER - I
RERFEIMEEEK)5% (=
NE 5%) BEBARERE - T
I E SR M HA R BT E
TRBS% (ZF—NLF  5%) K
FAK m&@ﬂﬁM°%AE%
ABTEETAES(ZF—N
F5%)ME - HEERS ﬁﬂ
ERARTE -

As at 31 December

R+t=B=t-H

2020 2019

—BIRF —TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

HK$ o 425 739

US$ e 2 2
In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the BEEERR  BREIMIER
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the KAEINERR - ARFERER

exposure during the years. AR ENRR o
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for the year ended 31 December 2020
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28.

170

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate lease liabilities and fixed-rate bank borrowings (2019: fixed-rate lease
liabilities). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk which
arises from cash and cash equivalents (2019: cash and cash equivalents and
floating rate bank borrowings) which carry interests at prevailing market

rates.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps in order to mitigate its
exposure associated with transactions relating to cash flows interest rate risk.
However, the management of Group monitors interest rate exposure and

will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 10 basis points increase or decrease in interest rate on cash and
cash equivalents (2019: a 10 basis points increase or decrease in interest
rate on cash and cash equivalents and a 50 basis points increase or decrease
in interest rate on floating rate bank borrowings) is used which represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible changes in interest

rates.

NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate nisk (continued)

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower for cash and cash
equivalents (2019: interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower
for cash and cash equivalents and 50 basis points higher/lower for bank
borrowings), with all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 would increase/decrease by

RMB78,000 (2019: RMB|3,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end of the reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of these assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

28. &@WMIA(E)

b.

HHREREEBERBE (&)
mEEkE (&)

FIEERE (&)
MRERREEBMHONE L
/O TRIOEES(ZT—AH
F-ReRBELZEMHTE L
/TR I0EER RBITETRE
F%E A/ THESOEEE) - F
FEMBERFIE  HAKE
REBZE-Z-_FF+-A=+—
RIEFEMBRBEER LM,
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EERBRBEFG
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REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020

HFE-E-FF+-f=f—HILFE

28.

172

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

The management of the Group determines credit limits based on the credit
quality. Credit limits are reviewed annually over these balances. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade
receivables individually and collectively with appropriate groupings, which
is based on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to the nature
of debtors and internal credit ratings. Impairment (net) of RMB34,000 is
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Impairment (net)
of RMB29,000 was reversed). Details of the quantitative disclosures are set
out below in this note. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider

that the Group’s credit risk of trade receivables is significantly reduced.

Deposits and other receivables and bank balances
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are

banks with high credit ratings and stated-owned banks with good reputation.

For deposits and other receivables, the Group performs an ongoing
individual credit evaluation of their counterparties’ financial conditions and
historical settlement records. The directors of the Company believe that
there are no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL and the

management is of the opinion that the outstanding debts are recoverable.

NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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e P AR MR

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following

categories:

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

28. &@WMIA(E)
b. HHEEREEBEERBE(Z)
EEREERHAEFE (E)

AEENRNEEERRSRTG

BIEATER -

Intemal credit ~ Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
REMEE L BB RAGR HiemERE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL — not credit- [2-month ECL
does not have any past-due amounts impaired
R HFINRNRRRELYBEMANN HEFRBEEEFE -K REARDEEESE
] BEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but  Lifetime ECL — not credit- [2-month ECL
usually settle after due date impaired
BERE BEEARTERETERTRNES FERRAEEBE - K NREABRHEEER
BERERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — not credit- Lifetime ECL — not credit-
credit risk since initial recognition through impaired impaired
information developed internally or external
resources
QL= BRAINBHBISENABEERRE FEMRMEESR - X HFEHBRNEEER - A%
Min R AR ELZ 0 FEERRE EEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
impaired
EPS REBBRNEREECELARERE FERRNEEBE-C GEURMEEFE -2
BAEEERE EEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtoris ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
in severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery
6! FREBBRNEBABARENYBEREE WHEEESR MIEEHELR
AEBETRABRAIKEABREFR
FEREEBRAF
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for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. @I H(#E)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HEEREEEERKE(Z)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERBRREFEG (E)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial TRAMKEREETEHREE
assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: BRI EREENEZER
Gross
External Internal carrying
2020 Notes credit rating credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL amount
SR wEs 128 A REFED
bt St 22 .  FEIR  FEFIR BAREEESR BREE
RMB’ 000
ARBTR
Financial assets at amortised costs
REERANEREE
Bank balances 20 Baa-AAA N/A  12-month ECL 103,557
RITHEER 20 Baa-AAA TEA NREAEMEEESR
Deposits and other receivables 19 N/A Low risk  12-month ECL 845
Be R EMRARIR 19 TER KRR NREARDREESSE
Trade receivables 18 N/A (Note) Lifetime ECL (individually assessed) 131,685
ER )G eE 8 TEA (M=) FEARBEEEE (ERIFML)
Lifetime ECL (collectively assessed) 57,437
FRARHEEEE (KRFME)
174 NNK Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

28. ®@MIA (&)

F¥EREEREREE (&)
EEmE R BEFG ()

Gross
Extemal Internal carrying
2019 Notes  credit rating  credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL amount
N EB PR Iﬂlﬁﬁfﬁ%
—T-NF i EEFR EER ABRREE
RMB'000
ARETTT
Financial assets at amortised costs
RBERFNEREE
Bank balances 20 Baa-AAA N/A  12-month ECL 117,304
RITHER 20 Baa-AAA TER 1EABHEEESE
Deposits and other receivables 19 N/A [2-month ECL 1,425
Be KA YRR 19 TEH 2EABHEEER
Trade receivables 18 N/A Lifetime ECL (individually assessed) 57,230
ER )G/ eE] 18 TER (Miz) FESBESBEEERE (@RS
Lifetime ECL (collectively assessed) 48,792
FREBEHEEER (KEFE)
Note: Bzt -

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9
to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant
outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on these
items on a collective basis, grouped by nature of debtors and debtors’ internal credit

rating.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit
rating for its debtors on trade receivables. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed on a
collective basis as at 31 December 2020 within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired).
Trade receivables with significant outstanding balances with gross carrying amount of
RMBI31,685,000 (2019: RMB57,230,000) as at 31 December 2020 were assessed
individually.

HESHREREN S - AREDRA
BEMEREEREIFOBILTIE
AEFENEREERRNEER
o REAEEARREREHACE

EREERENEBUENRIN - AEER
SREE (BEBANMEEREBA
HNEEETROE) EXEZEEE
HMEMEEEE -

EAREEGEERRERN—5
REBEAEEBAKAE S ERZKE
NEME ST - TRIBREENFE
HIEEEERE REEEERE) A
SXEHENFE(RZTZEF+
:H:JrfElE%ﬁ@a%MmﬂﬁM
MEHR - 7777¢+ ﬂ +—
B ERGFEEANAEELEHEL
%Eﬁ%AE%BM%%WﬂfY
—NF  AR¥57,230,00070) M8 5
FEWGRIEETTRBIRTE -
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

28. ®@WMIA (&)

MREBEEBEREE (&)
EEmRE R BEFG ()

2020

=
Gross carrying
amount of
Average trade
loss rate receivables
B 5 RBlsa
FHEERE AEREE
RMB’000
ARBTR
Low risk Ve 0.25% 57,437

2019

“T-NF
Gross carrying
amount of
Average trade
loss rate receivables
B HRKR
FHERER EREE
RMB'000
ARBTT
Low risk BRI 022% 48,792

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-

looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided RMB143,000 (2019:
RMB106,000) impairment allowance for trade receivables which are assessed
on a collective basis. Impairment allowance of RMB3,000 (2019: RMB6,000)

were made on debtors with significant balances debtors.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

28. ®@MIA (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HEEREEEERERE(E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERRRHEFE ()
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been TRERDIEGHEME FE
recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach. WHRIBERANFENEHEZEES
B -
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
FEAR FRIRY
HEEER FEER
(RE#%E (B&E
FERE) FEERHE) st
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTRT AR®TR
As at | January 2019 RZE-NF—H—H 141 4,000 4141
Changes due to financial instruments RZZE-NF—A—B#ERH
recognised as at | January 2019: ERITAMNES
— Impairment losses reversed — REBEEE (141) — (141)
— Write-off — s — (4,000) (4,000)
New financial assets originated HEENEREE 112 — 12
As at 3| December 2019 R-E-AF+t-HA=1t—H 112 — 112
Changes due to financial instruments R-_Z_ZF—H—HHRD
recognised as at | January 2020: ERITAMNES
— Impairment losses reversed — B{EEEED (112) — (112)
New financial assets originated HEENEREE 146 — 146
As at 3| December 2020 RZEZTF+-A=1—H 146 — 146
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28.

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b.

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly due to:

$HMIA®)

MREBEEBEREE (&)
EEmRE R BEFG ()
ESREFRNERERES T

ZEER :

2020 2019
—g-g5 i
Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL  Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL
FRERAER FERREES
EEEm/ (BY) BEsEm,/ (i)
Not credit- Credit- Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired impaired impaired

ABEGEAE CREGERE AELEENE CEEERAE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETRT AR®TT ARETR
New trade receivables with gross BERAEARE
carrying amount of RMBI189,122,000  189,122,0007T
(2019: RMB106,022,000) (ZF—Nn&F:
AR #106,022,0007)
MFTEE 5 R YEUR 146 — 112 —
Whrite-off of a credit-impaired trade HE_T-NF
debtor with gross carrying amount TZA=+—HLEFE -
of RMB4,000,000 for year ended BEREEAREK
31 December 2019 4000000TCE#E
EERENE S RTME — — — (4,000)
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating CEKBETREBAERE SIS

that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables
are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. None of the trade

receivables that have been written off is subject to enforcement activities.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

28. &@WMIA(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HMEEREZEERBEXE(Z)
Liquidity risk REELEE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains REBRBERARE - AEE
a level of cash and cash equivalents as well as undrawn banking facilities ERVARKERERRT RN
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations AEEMEEIAERSMER
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management BERNTENRe A2 EFE
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings to ensure compliance with loan WA R KR IREURTTRIE KT « B
covenants. BEERRITERNERBERLA
FERIET BN -
The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturities TR ERFIAEE TR B AN
for its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the Fgre BMAR - ZFIERE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the ERemARLREEABNARE
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes %fﬂﬁfﬁéﬁﬁﬁé\$$ﬁﬁ)§ig
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are SJZH%\E@H%T 2 ,Hﬂ%ﬁi%;ﬁlﬁ\‘%/@
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the %ﬂ %EE$}' WRDRE o T
end of the reporting period. RRERZUINE  ARALRT)
BHREHROFEEGEH -
Weighted Repayable
average on demand Total
effective or within 3 months | yearto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to | year 5 years cash flows amount
ik 332! R3fEA 38R AERRE
BRNZ RiEE EIf IFE5F REAR REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
%  ARBTR ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  AR%Tx
Asat 3| Decermber 200  RZFZFF
t-A=t+-A
Trade payables B kMR — 18474 = = 18474 18474
Other payables BRI - 8,344 = - 8,344 8,344
Bank borrowings RITEH 520 — 50,848 - 50,848 50,000
Lease liabilties HERR 590 28 857 1,053 2,191 2,067
27,099 51,705 1,053 79,857 78,885
FEREEBRAF
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REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

28. €W IA(E)

b.

MREBEEBBEREE (E)

Liquidity risk (continued) REELEE (E)
Weighted Repayable
average on demand Total
effective or within 3 months I'yearto  undiscounted Canrying
interest rate 3 months to lyear 5 years cash flows amount
/e
IEF R3fEA 3@ A ARRHE
BRH= REE ZIF |FE55F RERR BRmEfE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETT ARETT ARt ARETRT  AR%ETR
Asat3| December 2019 RZT—NEF
tZA=t-H
Trade payables BARNE - 25999 - - 25999 25999
Other payables E At FUR — 3,388 — - 3,388 3,388
Bank borrowings RITER 590 20095 - - 20095 20000
Lease liabilties HESR 590 324 934 2070 338 3061
49,806 934 2070 52810 52448
c.  Fair value of financial instruments « SMIANAFE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing model based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair value.
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

@)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel which represents the
directors of the Company and key executives of the Group during the year

were as follows:

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

29. BEARS

(@)

TEEBASNMS

FR - XEEBEAB (BARA
EERASEXIETBRAE)N
MemT

2020 2019

ZEZEF —T—NF

RMB’000 RMB' 000

AR¥TT ARET

Salaries and other short term benefits e RE MR HE A 5,670 5026
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKBHMF IR 143 258
5813 5,284

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Guarantee

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's unsecured bank borrowings facilities
were guaranteed by the Company, Daily Charge SZ, Mr. Huang Junmou and
Mr. Yang Hua who were substantial shareholders of the Company, to the
extent of RMB50,000,000, of which RMB50,000,000 was utilised.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's unsecured bank borrowings facilities
were guaranteed by the Company, Daily Charge SZ, Mr. Huang Junmou and
Mr. Yang Hua who were substantial shareholders of the Company, to the
extent of RMB50,000,000, of which RMB20,000,000 was utilised.

FERTBARABNMET2
HAARRRTSESET -

R
RN_ZE-_TF+-A=+—8"
AEENEEMRITERRE
HARAR - RAFRI - BiE
RAEERBELRE (HRART
FTERE)ER HEUARK
50,000,000 T AR - HP ARK
50,000,000 F ©

RZE-AE+_A=+—H"
AEENEEARTERRE
BAAR - RAZRRI - &HiE
FREERGELEE (BHRARRAT
FERE)ER HEUARK
50,000,000 T AR - EPARK
20,000,000 EEA ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

30.

31

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 14 December 2015, the Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
pursuant to a resolution passed by its then shareholders on |4 December 2015, for
the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible employees, non-

executive directors of the Company and other selected participants.

The principal terms of which are summarised in the section headed “Statutory and
General Information — F. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Company’s
prospectus in respect of the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange dated 24 December 2015. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December

30. EBRERE

2019, no share option was granted.

RZZE-—RFE+-A+HEA  BREAL
AERREN_Z—AF+=-A+MmAH
BBMAZER  ARABRERA—IE
BRESE - TEANRREARRIEE
BEE  FMTETREMBETRHEE
RAHES AR -

BT EIM) = ZIRTBIN AR A A5t
HROEE AR Emm TSR R
T-RF T A THARBRERN
B EE R —MRER —FRBREST 2
—f e RZTEFT+_A=1+—AHK
—Z-NFT-A=t+—-BYERLE
PRAE -

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 3I. MBRRFEE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 3| December 2020 and 2019 ARAR_ZB_ZFR_F-NEF+=

were as follows: A=+—BHMBARFBENT :
Date and place Issued and fully Attributable equity
of incorporation/ paid share capital/ interests to the Group

Name of subsidiary establishment/operations registered capital As at 31 December Principal activities
MR,/ ERTREAR FREEGRE

WELRER Ry /BRI BE,/ ZRER Rm+t=A=t-H FEEH

2020 2019
ZBI8F “TNF

Phone Charge Technology Limited (Note 1) 19 June 2014 HK$50,000 100% [00%  Investment holding
British Virgin Islands

Phone Charge Technology Limited (i3 1) ZE-MERATNA 50000/ 7T 100% 100% REER
RERUES

NN Payment Limited (Note ) 28 February 2017 HK$50,000 100% [00%  Investment holding
British Virgin Islands

NN Payment Lirited (Fi3E 1) “Z—+%-A-t/\H 50,000/87T 100% 100% HRERR
RERKES

Daily Charge HK Company Limited (Note 2) 7 July 2014 HK$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong

ARAME (BB BRAR (FE2) “F-RELALR 50000787 100% 100%  FATRRR
A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

Date and place
of incorporation/

establishment/operations

31

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

BB D RS (2)

Attributable equity
interests to the Group

As at 3| December

Principal activities

Bl ERTREHR rE@EERE
WEAREHE K,/ €ERBRLE BA/EMEE R+=A=t+-8H TEER
2020 2019
“Z-EF ZTNF
FELABRAR(Note 2) 20 March 2017 HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
Hong Kong
FEXNERDR (M) “T—+F=A=TH 25,000,000787¢ 100% 100%  NEE
Daily Charge SZ (Note 3) 30 January 2015 RMBI,000,000 100% [00%  Investment holding
The PRC
ARF RN (HHE3) —E-1F-A=1H AR 10000007 100% 100% REER
i
Shenzhen NINK (Note 4) I3 June 2006 RMB20,680,000 100% 100%  Mobile top-up services
The PRC
AINEFR (F54) —ZTRE/ATZH AR 206800007 100% 100% FHEETERE
el
A EERBERRER AT (Note 4) 25 June 2016 RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Technical development
The PRC
ARG BBERRARA —E-RE/ AZTHA ARH50000007 100% 100% TEE
(P5E4) G
FEREEFRAA
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REUBRRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Notes:

The equity interests of the subsidiaries are directly held by the Company.

2. The equity interests of the subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

3. The equity interest of the subsidiary is indirectly held by the Company and the
subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

4. The equity interests of the subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company through
the VIE Arrangement and the subsidiaries are wholly domestic owned enterprises
established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the each

reporting period or at any time during the year.

‘l 84 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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D REE (2)
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EMBARMOBER AR AR

o

ot R

EM B AR RES AR AR

o

ot Ry

BB 2 R ) A i A A R R R A
Kz B AR R BRSNS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

32.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

32. AP RBHERRRHEER

COMPANY
2020 2019
—ECEE —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET
Non-current asset FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries e NG 2,845 12,762
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 9,773 13934
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEULH B A RIFUAR 122 —
9,895 13,934
Current liabilities nEEE
Other payables H it eI 5RIE 357 753
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASFT B 2 RIFIA = 6,556
357 7,309
Net current assets TEEEFE 9,538 6,625
Total assets less current liabilities and net assets BEERRDABEREEFE 12,383 19,387
Capital and reserves EXR R
Share capital R 27,221 27221
Reserves T (14,838) (7834)
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company ARRAEE ARIGRRIERRE 12,383 19,387
FEREEFRAA 185
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—F-FF+-A=1—AU5E

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves

33. RRRHBMRRERBERE)

ARRREEE

Share  Accumulated Total

premium losses equity

B RE RitEE REEARE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®TRE AR®BTRT AR®TR

At | January 2019 RZZE-NE—HA—H 38,037 (40,446) (2,409)

Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year FAEE K E M2 HEH Y — (5,425) (5,425)

At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+-A=+—H 38,037 (45,871) (7,834)

Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year FAE1E R E M 2R — (7,004) (7,004)

At 31 December 2020 RZZBZTF+-A=1+—H 38,037 (52,875) (14,838)
186 NNK Group Limited
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

e P AR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
HEE-FF_A=f—HIFE

33. MERDELNEEHR

THRADAEEREIHELNRER
g BRASNEREEE - REEY
ELMBEENARESARERE

Wﬁ%muij@ﬁxiﬁﬁmiaEXH#%BZD

activities. BRRERSRERENEE -
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
BITER HEAE st
(Note 23)
(Fff&E23)
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRT AR%TR AR¥TR
At | January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 40,000 3,500 43,500
Financing cash flows MERERE (21379) (1,082) (22461)
New leases entered EETHEL — 470 470
Interest expenses on bank borrowings  SRTTERF BFZ 1,379 — 1,379
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBEMNERAX — 173 173
At 31 December 2019 R-F-NF+-A=t—H 20,000 3,061 23,061
Financing cash flows RERERE 28923 (1,287) 27,636
New leases entered BETEAE A — 146 146
Interest expenses on bank borrowings PITERAMEFAX 1,077 — 1,077
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENERAX — 147 147
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_ZEF+_HA=t—H 50,000 2,067 52,067

FEREEFRAR
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LFEHMBRE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FRGeEEREtEEKER

Year ended 3| December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECRF —TNEF TN\ ZTtF ZTRF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT
Revenue A 81,742 49,827 60,280 8332 162,564
Cost of revenue WA A (18,228) (20,129) (35,759) (38,520) (77,850)
Gross profit E7 63,001 29,645 24318 43,364 82,143
Profit (loss) before tax BRiiADE A (&) 30,219 673 (21,610) (19,729) 34,650
Income tax (expense) credit et (%) BE (6) @) (4224) 691 (1,105)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to ~ ANA R A ARELS
owners of the Company FREN (EE) 30,213 665 (25,834) (19,038) 33,545
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive &7 (E518) k2 EU &
income (expense) (Fis) % 30,213 665 (25.834) (19,038) 33545
Eamings (loss) per share — basic FREREM (BE)
(RMB cents) (AR%5) 7.28 0.16 (623) (4.59) 8.14
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HRGEEERAEE
As at 3| December
R+=A=+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZBCRF —TNEF ZT-)\F ZT—+F ZTRF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Total assets mEE 352,970 280,052 321,155 419,732 413458
Total liabilities maR 143,764 101,059 142,827 21548 180,209
Total equity B 209,206 178,993 178,328 204,25 233,249
188 NNK Group Limited
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